Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYX LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

AGENDA
1.00 pm Wednesday, 16 Committee Room 2,
UP January 2019 Town Hall
Members: 16, Quorum: 6
BOARD MEMBERS:
Elected Members: Clir Jason Frost (Chairman)

Cllr Damian White
Cllir Robert Benham
Clir Gillian Ford

Officers of the Council: Andrew Blake-Herbert, Chief Executive
Tim Aldridge, Director of Children's Services
Barbara Nicholls, Director of Adult Services
Mark Ansell, Interim Director of Public Health

Havering Clinical Dr Atul Aggarwal, Chair, Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group: Commissioning Group (CCG)
Dr Gurdev Saini, Board Member Havering CCG
Ceri Jacob, BHR CCG
Steve Rubery, BHR CCG

Other Organisations: Anne-Marie Dean, Healthwatch Havering
Jacqui Van Rossum, NELFT
Christopher Bown, BHRUT
Danny Batten, NHS England

For information about the meeting please contact:
Victoria Freeman 01708 433862
victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk




What is the Health and Wellbeing Board?

Havering’'s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is a Committee of the Council
on which both the Council and local NHS and other bodies are represented.
The Board works towards ensuring people in Havering have services of the
highest quality which promote their health and wellbeing and to narrow
inequalities and improve outcomes for local residents. It will achieve this by
coordinating the local NHS, social care, children's services and public health
to develop greater integrated working to make the best use of resources
collectively available.

What does the Health and Wellbeing Board do?

As of April 2013, Havering’s HWB is responsible for the following key
functions:

e Championing the local vision for health improvement, prevention / early
intervention, integration and system reform

e Tackling health inequalities

e Using the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)and other
evidence to determine priorities

e Developing a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS)

e Ensuring patients, service users and the public are engaged in
improving health and wellbeing

e Monitoring the impact of its work on the local community by considering
annual reports and performance information



—< o]

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

V4

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):

+ any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;

« any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;

« any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering

« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;

+ any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;

+ any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.

rrzz0wwxoxmyu

“omoxm-Hz—

<APr - Z2COoOmmo

S omam-4HdzZ~—

o YES Declare Interest and Leave

Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)

+ Your well-being or financial position; or

» The well-being or financial position of:

o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or

- Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;

- Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;

o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or

o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose

member or in a position of general control or management?

principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or tracde union) of which you are a

You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests

AV4

Would a member of the public, with o )
knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
likely to prejudice your member of the mesting)

Y

E

S

- Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
through whom you have a personal interest?

- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
- Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?

Y
E
s

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias




AGENDA ITEMS

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or
other events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(If any) — receive

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the
agenda at this point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the

consideration of the matter.

MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET (Pages 1 - 12)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Committee held on 12
September 2018 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them, and to
consider the Action Log and Indicator Set (attached).

POPULATION HEALTH (Pages 13 - 24)

Report attached.

HEALTH IMPROVEMENT REPORT 2018 (Pages 25 - 54)

Report attached.

LOCALITIES UPDATE (Pages 55 - 66)

Report attached.

TRANSFORMATION OF SERVICES (Pages 67 — 78)

Report attached.



10.

11.

12.

WORK OF INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP (Pages 79 - 102)

Report attached.

BETTER CARE FUND 2017-19 (Pages 103 - 112)

Report attached.

FORWARD PLAN (Pages 113 - 116)

Plan attached.

FUTURE MEETING DATES

The next meeting is scheduled to be held on 13 March 2019, commencing
at 1.00pm, at Havering Town Hall.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
Committee Room 2 - Town Hall

12 September 2018 (1.00 - 3.10 pm)

Present:

Elected Members: Councillors Jason Frost (Chairman), Robert Benham and
Gillian Ford.

Officers of the Council: Mark Ansell, Interim Director of Public Health; and Trevor
Cook, Assistant Director for Education Services (substitute for Tim Aldridge,
Director of Children’s Services).

Havering Clinical Commission Group (CCG): Bunmi Olajide, Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group (substitute for Dr Atul Aggarwal); Steve Rubery, Interim
Director of Delivery and Performance, Barking, Havering and Redbridge Clinical
Commissioning Group; Dr Gurdev Saini, Board Member, Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group and Tracey Welsh, Redbridge Clinical Commissioning
Group (substitute for Ceri Jacob).

Other Organisations: Christopher Brown, Barking, Havering and Redbridge
University Hospitals’ NHS Trust; Anne-Marie Dean, Executive Chairman,
Healthwatch Havering; and Carole White, North East London NHS Foundation
Trust (substitute for Jacqui Van Rossum).

Also Present: Sharon Adkins, My Health Matters; Kathryn Kavanagh, Cancer
Commissioning Manager, Barking, Havering, Redbridge and West Essex; Vicki
Bainsfair, YMCA,; Girish Barber, Department for Work and Pensions; Joe Fielder,
Chair of Barking, Havering & Redbridge University Hospitals NHS Trust; Duncan
Jenner, Head of External Communications, Barking, Havering & Redbridge
University Hospitals NHS Trust; Caroline Penfold, Head of Children and Adults
Disabilities Service; and Lee Simpson, Department for Work and Pensions.

1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman gave details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
event that may require the evacuation of the meeting room or building.

The Chairman advised that he had agreed to amend the order of the
agenda, to take Item No. 8 before Item No. 4.

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from:
Andrew Blake Herbert, Chief Executive, London Borough of Havering

Jacqui Van Rossum, North East London Foundation Trust
Dr Atul Aggarwal, Chair, Havering Clinical Commissioning Group

Page 1



Health & Wellbeing Board, 12 September

2018

Councillor Damian White, London Borough of Havering

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest made in any items on the agenda.
MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET

The minutes of the meeting held on the 11 July 2018 were agreed as a
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

The following items were noted in respect of the action log:

17.27 — In terms of safeguarding, members had requested that the exempt
document containing data on incidents on cases referred to courts be
circulated to the Board. Clarification on the action was being sought.

18.1 — A report on Referral To Treatment performance would be provided
on a regular basis.

18.2 - 16 of the 18 secondary schools in Havering operated a closed gate
policy. Confirmation from the remaining two secondary schools was
outstanding.

18.4 — A report identifying opportunities to prevent sight loss to complement
the report by Healthwatch about quality of care post diagnosis had been
added to the forward plan.

18.5 — NHS England had confirmed that they had a development plan for
the shingles vaccination and details would be presented to the Health
Protection Forum and subsequently to the Board.

18.6 (i) — Information detailing what was on offer for paediatrics across the
borough had been circulated to members.

18.6 (ii) — The outcome of the community urgent care consultation — ‘Right
care, right place, first time’, would be presented at a future meeting and had
been added to the forward plan.

Members received the Health and Wellbeing Board indicator set which
provided an overview of the health of residents and the quality of care
services available to them.

HEALTHWATCH ANNUAL REPORT

The Board received The Healthwatch Havering Annual Report which
provided a summary of the work of Healtwatch Havering over the last year.
The Chairman of Healthwatch Havering explained that although they co-
ordinated with neighbouring Healthwatch organisations, their priorities
differed. The Chairman recognised the challenges faced by Barking,

Page 2



Health & Wellbeing Board, 12 September

2018

Havering and Redbridge University NHS Trust and their cooperation to
converse openly and share information with Healthwatch.

RESOLVED:
That the report, be noted.
HEALTH IMPROVEMENT REPORT

The Board received the draft Health Improvement Pan, which provided an
illustration of health improvement activities undertaken by the Public Health
Service in collaboration with other Council services and in partnership with a
range of organisations.

The draft report was presented to the Board as it might assist in discussions
regarding the approach/priorities for the new strategy.

The Board agreed that the item be carried forward to the next meeting and
in the meantime, for any comments on the draft Health Improvement Plan to
be fed back.

SEND STRATEGY

In July 2018, the Board received a report which highlighted the outcomes of
the Local Area Inspection of support for children with Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities (SEND) which took place between the 26 February
and 2 March 2018. The Board received the local area’s first comprehensive
SEND strategy, which addressed the findings of the recent Ofsted / CQC
inspection and stated the local authority’s ambition to build local provision to
meet growing SEND demand.

During discussion, the monitoring of excluded pupils with special
educational needs nationally was raised. The number of excluded pupils
with SEND in Havering was below the national average and was not an
area of concern identified during the inspection. Members suggested that
reference in the strategy be made to inclusion, the Fair Access Protocol and
monitoring.

Funding was the overall driver for the high needs review, and despite
receiving an additional £1m funding the previous year as a result of the
newly introduced funding formula, the high needs block was already
overspent.

There was a focus on support for 0-5 year olds, with the creation of the
inclusion fund, to ensure further support was provided for children in early
years, to enable them to be in the best position before entering primary
school.

Page 3



Health & Wellbeing Board, 12 September

2018

The need to support and train teachers was discussed, in particular the
provision of teacher training programmes which covered all major
disabilities, with particular emphasis on mental health and autism.

It was explained that the intensity of provision provided was dependent on
the pressure of need in particular areas in the borough. However, it was
reported that schools saw themselves in isolation and sought a fair
distribution of Additional Resource Provisions (ARPS), which was reflected
in the strategy’s intention to increase the number of ARP’s in the borough.

The importance of ensuring those schools under pressure have the
resources they need was raised and Members suggested that the strategy
be linked to the Learning Disability Improvement Standards for NHS Trusts.

Members requested that an update on the SEND action plan and the
Therapy Review — Options Appraisal, showing a timescale to the end of
October 2018, be provided at the next meeting

RESOLVED:

That the joint area SEND strategy, encompassing an action plan which
addressed SEND improvements and key areas raised by Ofsted / CQC
during inspection, be agreed.

CANCER
The Board received presentations on the topic of cancer, from the following:

Overview - Mark Ansell, Director of Public Health

Health Champion Programme - Sharon Adkins, My Health Matters
Cancer Services - Kathryn Kavanagh, Cancer Commissioning

Living with Cancer — Girish Barber and Lee Simpson, Department for
Work and Pensions; and Vicki Bainsfair, YMCA.

My Health Matters welcomed the changes in testing for cancer, in particular
bowel screening and the positive movements towards cancer diagnosis.
However, believed that improvements could be made in the making of the
initial contact. The linkage of cancer with education was raised and although
the current focus was on faith groups and GP’s, consideration would be
given to providing a link with schools, possibly through the Healthy Schools
Programme and enhancing discussions through the Personal, Social and
Health Education curriculum. The Local Authority would give consideration
to introducing Youth Health Champions in schools, however the decision
would ultimately be determined by affordability.

The YMCA Cancer Referral Scheme operated a 12 week exercise
programme which focused on Quality of Life, Active Daily Living, Physical
Activity and exercise, and the YMCA worked closely with Health
Champions, Macmillan, Cancer Nurse specialists and GP’s. Members

Page 4



Health & Wellbeing Board, 12 September

2018

discussed the capacity to provide general support to those living with
cancer. Individuals who approached the YMCA were asked to complete a
risk needs assessment and encouraged to exercise, as evidence had
emerged that exercise decreased cancer reoccurrence and this was further
being encouraged during Preventative Week.

The Department for Work and Pensions viewed cancer as a long term
health condition. Members were provided information on additional funding
available to businesses to assist those employees who had been diagnosed
with cancer. Concern was raised that many small businesses would find it
financially difficult to hold a position open, however it was a requirement for
all businesses, irrespective of their size, to make reasonable adjustments
for their employees, and funding was available, although underused.

The Disability Confident Scheme, designed to help businesses to recruit
and retain disabled people and people with health conditions for their skills
and talent, was being promoted.

During discussion, it was highlighted that the Barking, Havering, Redbridge
University NHS Trust had achieved a 62 day cancer standard and outcomes
were improving.

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the presentations, be noted.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Members requested that the next meeting of the Board be rescheduled.

Chairman

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



) abed

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log (following September 2018 Board meeting)

No. Date Board Non-Board Action Date for RAG rating Comments
Raised Member Member completion
Action Owner | Action Owner
17.27 | 14.03.18 Barbara Brian Boxhall In terms of safeguarding, members 16.01.19 -
Nicholls / Tim requested that the exempt document Completed.
Aldridge containing data on incidents on cases
referred to courts be circulated to the
Board.
18.2 11.07.18 Tim Aldridge / | Claire Alp A letter to be sent to the Chair of 16 January Verbal update to
Mark Ansell Governors of those schools that did not 2019 be provided at
operate a closed gate policy, advising them the meeting on
of the advantages of such a policy. the 16 January
2019.
Update provided at the meeting
September 2018 (Minute No. 4) - 16 of the
18 secondary schools in Havering operated
a closed gate policy. Confirmation from
the remaining two secondary schools was
outstanding.
6 12.09.18 Mark Ansell Elaine The Health Improvement Report to be 16 January Agenda ltem 6
Greenway presented to the next meeting of the 2019 refers.
Board.
7 12.09.018 Tim Aldridge Caroline An update on the SEND Action Plan and the Verbal update to
Penfold Therapy Review — Options Appraisal, be provided at

showing a timescale to the end of October
2018, be presented to the next meeting of
the Board.

the meeting with
a report to be
presented at a
future meeting.




This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board Indicator Set: 2018/19

The following high-level indicator set reflects the priorities and themes of the Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy. The first 10 core indicators provide an overview of the health of residents and the quality of care services available to them. Below the
core indicators are additional indicators covering those topics of current and special interest to the Board which will change over time.

6 obed

Havering Comparators Update
# Indicator (Healthy Life expectancy) What is Good?  Trend Period Update status ¢
Number of Years ~ London RAG England RAG Target RAG commentary
1 Healthy life expectancy, male High - 66 64 63 - 2014-16 Unchanged
2 Healthy life expectancy, female High - 64 64 64 - 2014-16 Unchanged
Havering Comparators
# Indicator (Other) What is Good?  Trend Period Update status
Count Rate (%) London RAG England RAG  Target RAG
3 Physically active adults High - 59 65 66 - 2016/17 Unchanged
4 Overweight (including) obese children, Year 6 Low 1032 39 39 34 - 2016/17 Unchanged
5 Achieving a good (or better) level of development at age 5 (EYFSP) High - 72 73 71 73 2016/17 Unchanged
: L : Remains
6 Good blood sugar control in people with diabetes High - 56 60 60 - 2017/18 Updated similar
7 A&E attendees discharged with no investigation and no significant treatment Low ‘ 12,367 - - - - 2017/18 Unchanged
: : : : : Remains
8 NHS friends and family recommendation of NHS Havering GPs High - 251 89 88 90 - Oct-18 Updated similar
9 Satisfaction with Adult Social Care services High - - 62 60 64 - 2015/16 Unchanged
10 Mortality attributable to air pollution Low - - 6.0 6.4 5.3 - 2016 (caendaryeay  Unchanged
11 Prescribed Long acting reversible contraception (LARC) excluding injections High - 1,195 2.4 3.4 . 4.7 . - 2017 (caendaryeay  Updated Verbal update
Referral to treatment _
High 18,463 85% 92 Oct-18 Updated Verbal update

t Increasing / better t Increasing / worse

Trend rating Steady/similar RAG rating - Significantly better than comparator Similar to comparator

Decreasing / better Decreasing / worse Significantly worse than comparator Comparison not made
g g g



Page 10



There are over 250K Havering residents. An increase of 10% in the last 10 years, with similar growth projected for the coming decade. Havering has the oldest population in London (46K residents aged 65 and older, 14K aged 80 or older) but
the number of births each year has increased by 33% in the last 10 years to nearly 3.3k. Havering is gradually becoming more ethnically diverse, but 83% of residents are White British; a higher proportion than both London (45%) and England
(80%). Havering is relatively affluent, but 10K children and young people aged <20 live in low income families and there are pockets of significant deprivation to the north and south of the borough. Average life expectancy is better than the
national average with a significant gap berween the least deprived and deprived areas. Most residents enjoy good health but 18% of working age people have a disability or long term illness.

# Indicator

1 Healthy life expectancy, male

2 Healthy life expectancy, female

3 Physically active adults

4 Overweight (including) obese children, Year 6

5 Achieving a good (or better) level of development at age 5 (EYFSP)

TT obed

6 Good blood sugar control in people with diabetes

7 A&E attendees discharged with no investigation and no significant treatment

8 NHS friends and family recommendation of NHS Havering GPs

9 Satisfaction with Adult Social Care services

10 Mortality attributable to air pollution

11 Prescribed Long acting reversible contraception (LARC) excluding injections

12 Referral to treatment

See This is Havering for further key geographic and socio-economic facts and figures

Description

The average number of years a male newborn would expect to live in good health based on mortality rates and self-reported good health

The average number of years a female newborn would expect to live in good health based on contemporary mortality rates and prevalence of self-
reported good health

Percentage of adults achieving at least 150 minutes of physical activity per week in accordance with UK Chief Medical Officer recommended
guidelines (current method)

Proportion of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight or obese. Children are classified as overweight (including obese) if their BMI is on or above
the 85th centile of the British 1990 growth reference (UK90) according to age and sex

Percentage of pupils achieving at least the expected level in the Early Learning Goals within the three prime areas of learning and within literacy and
mathematics; this is classed as having a good level of development; The local target set by the Havering childrens team is 73%

The percentage of patients with diabetes in whom the last IFCC-HbA1c is 59 mmol/mol (equivalent to HbAlc of 7.5% in DCCT values) or less (or
equivalent test/reference range depending on local laboratory) in the preceding 12 months

Havering GP-registered patients who attend BHRUT A&E who are discharged without an investigation and with no significant treatment; this suggest
that attendance at A&E was not appropriate

The Friends and Family Test asks patients how likely, on a scale ranging from extremely unlikely to extremely likely, they are to recommend the
service to their friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment

The percentage of adult social care survey respondents who expressed strong satisfaction with the care and support services they received

Percentage of annual all-cause adult mortality attributable to human-made particulate air pollution (measured as fine particulate matter <2.5um)

Percentage of LARC excluding injections prescribed by GP and Sexual and Reproductive Health Services per 100 resident females aged 15-44 years;
a high figure suggests that there is access to a choice of contraceptive methods

Percentage of Havering GP-registered patients referred to BHRUT, treated within the expected timescales

https://www.haveringdata.net/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/



https://www.haveringdata.net/joint-strategic-needs-assessment/

Page 12



_ Agenda Item 5
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Population Health

Board Leads: Mark Ansell / Barbara Nicholls /
Steve Rubery

Report Author and contact details: Elaine Greenway, Consultant in Public Health
Elaine.greenway@havering.gov.uk

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

<] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X] Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X] Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

The overarching theme of the Health and Wellbeing Board January 2019 meeting is
prevention. Itis hoped that the various items presented will aid discussions about
the possible form and content of a new Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

The first paper, A vision for population health, Towards a healthier future, is a recent
report by the King’s Fund. It sets out the health and wellbeing challenge facing the
country as whole and where efforts are best placed to achieve improvement. The
key points made, which are equally applicable to Havering, are:

e Over the past 100 years England has seen great improvements in health.
This has been due to improvements in sanitation, medicines and healthcare,
underpinned by economic growth, improved living standards, and
establishment of the welfare state.

e However, the rate of progress has stalled, and England now lags behind
comparable nations.

Page 13



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

e There has been a shift in the burden of disease; with people living for many
years with chronic conditions, in pain and with mental ill health.

e There need to be a move away from a system that is focused on diagnosing
and treating illness towards one that is based on promoting wellbeing and
preventing ill health

e Health is shaped by a range of factors (see figure 1 below): those in the outer
ring have the most impact, followed by lifestyles and health behaviours and
the health and care system. Communities (where we live and work) and
social networks are also important.

The Kings Fund report
suggests that attention
should switch from a
narrow focus on treatment
and care services to the
improvement of population
health. It suggests that
this will require a more
balanced approach to four
underpinning “pillars”. The
items presented to the

canstituticnal

faciors Health and We"be|ng
Board address each of the

Figure 1: Dahilgren and Whitehead 1991 model

; . ) four pillars in turn
of the rainbow of social determinants: our pillars In turn, as

- follows:

Pillar 1: Wider determinants of health

Income and wealth, education, housing, transport and leisure are the most important
drivers of health and wellbeing. Local authorities have a major influence on these
wider determinants and Havering Council has a history of providing conditions that
foster wellbeing. The adoption of a “Health in all Policies” approach, including the
routine incorporation of health impact assessment into business processes will
ensure that the Council extracts as much benefit as possible from decisions, policies
and strategies that impact on the wider determinants of health. See paper Health
Improvement Report (2018).

Pillar 2: Health behaviours and lifestyles

Individual behaviours and lifestyle choices regarding smoking, alcohol consumption,
diet and exercise etc. are the second most important driver of health. Indeed some of
the effects of the wider determinants of health are mediated by systematic variations
in lifestyle and behaviour. A flavour of relevant activity in 17/18 is also summarised
in the paper Health Improvement Report (2018).

Page 14



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Pillar 3: The places and communities we live in

There is increasing recognition of the key role that places and communities play in
health (including mental health), including the impact of social relationships and
community. See paper Localities Update.

Pillar 4: An integrated health and care system

There are growing numbers of people with multiple long term conditions. The need
to integrate health and care services to provide effective care continues to be a
priority locally. See papers Transformation of Services and Work of the Integrated
Care Partnerships.

Attached is the 8 page executive summary, the full report is available here:
https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/vision-population-health

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

The Board is asked to note the Kings Fund report.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘
No further detail
‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘
None
‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘
None

Page 15


https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/vision-population-health

This page is intentionally left blank



TheKingsfFund) raiae""

A vision for
population health

Towards a healthier future

Overview

Substantial improvements in life expectancy over the past 100 years mean that people
are living longer, healthier lives than ever before.

However, England lags behind other countries on many key health outcomes,
improvements in life expectancy have stalled and health inequalities are widening. To
address this, we need to move away from a system just focused on diagnosing and
treating illness towards one that is based on promoting wellbeing and preventing ill health.

Population health is an approach that aims to improve physical and mental health
outcomes, promote wellbeing and reduce health inequalities across an entire population.
This report outlines The King's Fund’s vision for population health, our reasoning for why
such a vision is needed and the steps required to achieve it.

Our vision is to reduce inequalities and achieve health outcomes on a par with the best in
the world by focusing on population health locally, regionally and nationally. The report
outlines a framework for population health centred on four pillars: the wider determinants
of health; our health behaviours and lifestyles; the places and communities we live in; an
integrated health and care system.

We call for action at national, regional and local levels. This should include: ambitious
and binding national goals to drive progress; a cross-government strategy for reducing
health inequalities; stronger political and system leadership; greater clarity on the roles
and accountability of national bodies and local organisations; and increased investment
in prevention, public health and spending that supports population health.

In recent years, The King’'s Fund has played a key role in promoting integrated care and
supporting place-based systems of care. This report marks the next stage in our journey
and signals that population health will be a key focus of our work in future.

David Buck, Alex Baylis, Durka Dougall, Ruth Roberti3aige 17 Summary November 2018



A vision for population health

The case for change

Over the past 100 years, in common with other developed countries, England has
made a great escape from poor health and short life expectancy. This has been
due to improvements in sanitation, medicines and health care, underpinned by
economic growth, improved living standards and the establishment of the welfare
state. Life expectancy has improved and, although inequalities in health have been
ever-present, as a population we are healthier than ever before.

However, progress against many key measures has stalled and risks going into
reverse. Data shows that there has been little or no improvement since 1990 in
how long people live with illness and disease. England lags behind comparable
nations on many key measures of health outcomes, and our obesity rates are among
the worst in western Europe. Improvements in life expectancy have ground to a
halt. Inequalities in health are widening, condemning some people to live much
shorter lives, in poorer health.

An important shift is taking place in the burden of disease, from mortality to
morbidity, with people living for many years with chronic conditions, in pain and
with mental ill health. Much of this is preventable, yet the NHS remains, at heart,
a treatment service for people when they become ill, and we lack a comprehensive
approach to keeping us well.

NHS organisations have a critical role, not just as providers of health services but
as employers, key players in their local economies and anchor institutions in their
communities. However, these challenges cannot be addressed by the health and
care system alone; a much broader approach is required that pays more attention
to the wider determinants of health and the role of people and communities.

The Secretary of State for Health and Social Care has published a vision for
prevention, identifying this as a key priority and signalling that a Green Paper will be
published in 2019. This is encouraging, but previous ministers have arrived in office
with good intentions and talked up the importance of prevention and public health
only to end up not delivering as other challenges consume their time and political
capital. It must be different this time.

Summary Page 18



A vision for population health

What affects our health?

Our health is shaped by a range of factors, as set out in Figure 1. It is hard to be
precise about how much each of these factors contributes to our health, but the
evidence is convincing that the wider determinants of health in the outer ring have
the most impact, followed by our lifestyles and health behaviours, and the health
and care system. There is also now greater recognition of the importance of the
communities we live and work in, and the social networks we belong to.

Figure 1 What affects our health?

i cultural and eny;,
o)

\O
,ec’o Living G/; ¥
(,\0 and working Y
\60 conditions Co,)
> (o8
& 7.
Q Unemployment 60
& 2
Water and
sanitation
Education
Health care
services
Agriculture
and food Age, sex and
production constitutional
factors Housing

Source: Dahlgren and Whitehead (1993), cited in The King’s Fund (2013)

What is population health?

Population health is an approach that aims to improve physical and mental health
outcomes, promote wellbeing and reduce health inequalities across an entire
population. There is no single accepted definition of population health. We see it
as a broad overarching concept, encompassing but going beyond the NHS, public
health and population health management.® Crucially, it focuses on the wider
determinants of health and the role of people and communities.

1 Population health management uses data to plan and deliver care to achieve maximum impact on the health
of a population.

Summary Page 19



A vision for population health

Our vision for population health

Our vision for population health is that:

Health outcomes and inequalities in health in England will be on a par with the
best in the world. This will be achieved by a consistent and coherent focus on
population health locally, regionally and nationally.

In recent years, health policy has focused on the funding, organisation and delivery
of services, with insufficient attention paid to population health outcomes and

the factors shaping them. Progress has been measured by how the system is
performing rather than by the health of the whole population. The first step to
achieving our vision therefore is to set a small number of ambitious and binding
national goals to drive improvements in population health, including reductions

in health inequalities.

A framework for action: the four pillars of population health

Our vision for population health is based on the four interconnecting pillars in
Figure 2.

e« There is now a wealth of evidence that the wider determinants of health are
the most important driver of health. In addition to income and wealth, these
determinants include education, housing, transport and leisure.

e  Our health behaviours and lifestyles are the second most important driver
of health. They include smoking, alcohol consumption, diet and exercise. For
example, while reductions in smoking have been a key factor in rising life
expectancy since the 1950s, obesity rates have increased and now pose a
significant threat to health outcomes.

e  There is now increasing recognition of the key role that places and
communities play in our health. For example, our local environment is an
important influence on our health behaviours, while there is strong evidence
of the impact of social relationships and community networks, including
on mental health.

e Recent years have seen a strong focus on developing an integrated health
and care system. This reflects the growing number of patients with multiple
long-term conditions and the need to integrate health and care services
around their needs rather than within organisational silos.

Summary Page 20



A vision for population health

Figure 2 A population health system

The wider
determinants
of health

Our health
behaviours and
lifestyles

" The places and
communities

we live in,
and with

An integrated
health and
care system

Together, the four pillars form the basis for a population health system. As a
concept, this is not new. However, current efforts in relation to the pillars are not
in balance and there is not enough focus on the pillars as interconnecting parts
of the same system. A more balanced approach is required that distributes effort
across all four pillars and, crucially, makes the connections between them.

Summary Page 21



A vision for population health

What needs to change?

Achieving our vision and delivering improvements in population health will require
concerted action at national, regional and local levels, drawing on the assets of
people and communities. Improving population health is a shared responsibility and
progress also depends on supporting people to live healthier lives. We recommend
change in three main areas.

Leadership

Strong political leadership is essential to ensure that improving population health
is a key priority for the health and care system and across government. In reducing
health inequalities, lessons can be learnt from the progress made under the

last Labour government. England can also learn from other countries, including
Scotland and Wales, which have taken a bolder approach to improving population
health. Effective local system leadership is also vital. The complexity of local
structures means that approaches will vary from place to place with health and
wellbeing boards, integrated care systems (ICSs), sustainability and transformation
partnerships (STPs) and political leaders such as elected mayors all having key roles
to play.

Our recommendations to strengthen leadership for population health include
the following.

e  Population health and health inequalities must be at the heart of the role of
the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care.

e«  The government should announce a new cross-government strategy to reduce
health inequalities.

e  The government should ensure that arrangements are in place to co-ordinate
action on population health across Whitehall departments and that all relevant
government policies are subject to a health impact assessment.

e Lessons should be learnt from previous successes in tackling health
inequalities and from the experience of other countries, including Scotland
and Wales.

e Local system leaders and politicians should champion population health. Local
authorities have a key role to play working with the NHS and other partners
including through health and wellbeing boards, STPs and ICSs.

Summary Page 22



A vision for population health

Roles and accountability

At national level, greater clarity is needed about the roles and responsibilities of
NHS England and Public Health England in particular. Accountability for improving
population health at local and regional levels is currently weak and confusing.
Strategic bodies, such as HWBs, STPs, ICSs and political leaders such as elected
mayors have important roles to play in ensuring that local actions are aligned with
national goals. The NHS long-term plan, new five-year STPs to be developed in 2019
and the forthcoming Green Paper on prevention provide opportunities to clarify this.

Our recommendations to clarify roles and strengthen accountability include
the following.

e«  The government should set ambitious and binding national goals for
population health and health inequalities.

e«  The government should provide greater clarity about the roles of NHS England
and Public Health England in achieving these goals. As part of this, the role
of Public Health England should be reviewed to ensure it has the authority to
provide effective leadership and challenge to government.

e  Strategic bodies, such as HWBs, ICSs, STPs and local political leaders such
as elected mayors should ensure clarity about roles and accountability for
population health and alignment of local actions with national goals.

Funding and funding mechanisms

Political attention tends to focus on the NHS, with funding following accordingly.
In contrast, short-sighted cuts to the public health grant mean that local authority
spending per head on key prevention services is on track to fall by almost a quarter
in real terms between 2014/15 and 2019/20. We need to rebalance resources
between the four pillars in our framework, starting with the restoration and
protection of public health funding. The government can also play a strong role in
supporting people to live healthier lives through tax and regulation, as shown by
the impact of the Soft Drinks Industry Levy.

Our recommendations to rebalance spending to support population health include
the following.

o The forthcoming Spending Review should restore public health grants to local
authorities to at least 2015/16 levels (an increase of at least £690 million) and
move to multi-year funding settlements.

Summary Page 23



A vision for population health

e  The Spending Review should announce moves to trial new funding
mechanisms for prevention, such as a prevention transformation fund.

e  Building on the lessons from the Soft Drinks Industry Levy, the government
should be bold in using taxation and regulation to support health improvement.

Where next?

Making our vision for population health a reality will require concerted, systematic
and coherent efforts over many years. We hope that the framework we have set
out will provide a starting point for this and a useful tool for developing population
health systems at national, regional and local levels.

This also signals a new phase of work for The King's Fund. Building on our work
to promote integrated care and support place-based systems of care, population
health will be a key focus for us in future. We hope that you will join us as we
embark on the next stage in our journey.

To read the full report, A vision for population health: towards a healthier future,
please visit www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/vision-population-health

The King’s Fund is an independent charity working to improve health and
care in England. We help to shape policy and practice through research
and analysis; develop individuals, teams and organisations; promote
understanding of the health and social care system; and bring people
together to learn, share knowledge and debate. Our vision is that the
best possible health and care is available to all.

www.kingsfund.org.uk ¥ @thekingsfund

Page 24


http://www.kingsfund.org.uk
https://twitter.com/thekingsfund?lang=en
http://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/vision-population-health

_ Agenda Item 6
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Health Improvement Report (2018)

Board Lead: Mark Ansell, Acting Director of Public Health

Report Author and contact details: Elaine Greenway, Consultant in Public Health
elaine.greenway@havering.gov.uk

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

<] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X] Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

The attached report (in draft) was previously provided to the Health and Wellbeing
Board in readiness for the September 2018 meeting, but was deferred to January
20109.

The Health Improvement Report (now presented as a final version) is particularly
useful for this meeting of the Board as it illustrates how the Council has broadened
its preventative approach to tackle the wider determinants of health, and health
behaviours and lifestyles; both summarised in the Kings Fund Report framework for
population health pillars 1 and 2 - the paper that preceded this agenda item.

Page 25



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

The Board is asked to consider and comment on the report in the context of the
Kings Fund Report that preceded this agenda item.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

The Health Improvement Report summarises the activities that have been
undertaken by the Public Health Service in collaboration with other Council services,
and in partnership with a range of organisations; primarily focusing on the eighteen
month period to August 2018. The report illustrates where the Council has used its
public health grant and resources®. to broaden the approach to prevention of poor
health.

The report sets out the health improvement activity under three headings which
directly relate to the first two pillars described in the Kings Fund paper A vision for
population health, Towards a healthier future:

Health Improvement Report Kings Fund paper

Section 1: Putting health and wellbeing into all policy, Pillar 1
systems and partnerships

Section 2: Commissioning health improvement Pillar 2
services
Section 3: Social marketing for behaviour change Pillar 2

Eighteen separate programmes of work are summarised with an illustration
regarding where the different programmes are interlinked with each other, with other
services, and with Council public health priorities. Following are examples of some
of the achievements from the past eighteen months which are explained further in
the report:

e Public Health and Planning worked together on health impact assessment of the
Local Plan. This showed that it is possible to take a very practical approach to
health in all policies, and this led to further interest in assessing other strategies
and policies for their impact on health (Pillar 1)

! Approximately 9fte officer time is directed on health improvement activity, and the remaining 8fte
split between health protection and service improvement.

Page 26




m¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Health champions delivered a range of health improvement activities and
attended over 100 events, raising awareness about priority health issues,
including mental health, cancer, physical activity, smoking, alcohol and healthy
eating — trainee GPs worked with health champions on an outreach project in
Romford town centre (Pillar 2)

A suicide prevention approach across BHR commenced, led by LBH public
health (Pillars 1 and 2)

The health and wellbeing in schools service has supported schools to achieve
Healthy Schools London awards, and has delivered training to school staff on a
range of health and wellbeing topics. The service is supporting schools to
prepare for new curriculum content on Sex and Relationship education. (Pillars 1
and 2)

Havering was one of just six London boroughs to participate in Healthy Early
Years London pilot, with eight awards achieved during the pilot phase (Pillars 1
and 2)

In partnership with Early Help and NELFT, starting solid foods workshops
designed to help parents to confidently wean babies onto solid foods; sessions
commenced in January (Pillar 2)

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Health Service
Health Improvement
Report

acyoss \ife

COV Yse gar %‘f

overa\\

Health i - partnerc Service
Improvement Improvement

Needs te whether
; ; assessment Eva\ua SanCne
/ Healbhier choices £l :fen ngss ’%:c ieve

omes
oy N
\@‘ Commmiom?:g health
S impyovement sevvices = !

Disease prevalence

‘ and adoibs
Healbhy natural Heaty ‘\,, E : A\ N ¥ 4 ﬂ
and i r ’ ‘ @

puilk envivonments for childven

High edvcation aspiration
and achievemen . lz t give
Working to \bh T
create a healony “62&‘;?2‘,? i :erw‘c‘e‘/ ‘thuar

> A.,,- wcl:—er \aLC‘GOV Elll .i
. employees and vedesign
y - uea\eh ath ek Q (0307

GQO Service provision

S £ vporak
SO

: Well paid
i Webgp
secwye
employment
Clear, advice abovt
\ifestyle change
maklcng vse of \oca)
ascets, services an.
self i\e\p aids
53 owragng ¢ children i»:m ngs
and schools to be healthy y\a ces
&Seiﬁkeg&\é that cwpport bect start in \ife xta’r\‘itv'}h 'Umml"m 1> kti“\f vgh
He’a\ votec

ection orvm
Promoting \'\ea\thyn\wuec !0 Hee?f,‘;?r:q

)z E|

'm;ng % avbg‘l’?‘t\?“:t";u“ ‘ IS % A With partnere: Hannmg
: 25 A ; 15

Sl wgmr ra\?fé e ik Xt : [EEY stavering = Health

entorcement ¥
Proiection

September 2018

Paée 29



Contents

Introduction by the Director of Public Health .................ooooiiiii e aae e e e 3
Section 1: Health and wellbeing in policy, systems and partnerships .........cccoirrerreeeeeeiriireeerrscceer e e e eeennnes 4
1. Health impact assessment of the LOCAl PlaN...........oioiiii ittt ete e e e ree e e e b e e s enre e e s e nreas 4
2. HEAITN N Al POLICIES «..eeieeieeeee ettt ettt ettt e st e e bt e e st e e s bt e e sabe e s beeesnseesabeeesabeesabeesaneeesareeeaneeenns 5
3. Mental health anNd WEIDEING ......ooo i e e e e e st e e s e tb e e e e sataeeesabaeeeessseeesnsaeeaan 6
4. Mental Health Training and Support for Havering SChOOIS ........uviiiiiiieeceecce e 7
5. Health and wellbeing in SCHOO0IS SEIVICE ......cciiiiiiiiceiee et e e e s et e e e e eata e e e easaeeeesaaeeesnsaneaan 8
6. Health and wellbeing in @arly Years SETLINGS ......uviiiii i e e e e e e e e e e e e nnraeeee s 9
I YUY ToiTe [l T =LV7 =T ) o o SR 10
8. Infant feeding: starting SOlid fOOUS ......uiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e s be e e e s abe e e e s nres 11
S B | oo [V | 1 Y PSPPSR 12
10. Empowering Parents Empowering COMMUNITIES ......uuuuui s 13
11. [ Tor= 1 1A =T @ Y1 To [T o W o [T ot PSR 14
Section 2: Commissioning health improvement Services .............cccoe i e e e 16
12. INHS HEAITH CRECKS ...ttt ettt e sttt e st esbe e e sabeesabeeesabeesabeeessbeesabeeesaseenanes 16
13. SEXUAI HEAITN ..ttt ettt ettt e sa e st e s bt e e sa bt e s bt e e s abe e s beeesabeesabeeebeeesabeeeaneeea 18
14. (D] UF-2ToTe IF-] [ole] Yol I o F=1 s T Yo 1V ot o [N 19
15. Health visiting and SChOOI NUISING SEIVICES ......cciiiiiiii ettt ree e e etee e e e sate e e e e eate e e e e nbaeeeenees 20
SeCtion 3: SOCIAl MAIKEEINEG ..........eeiiieiiii et e e e s e e ta e e e e e e s essaabaaaeeeeeeesanntaaeeeeeeesnnnsees 21
16. TODbACCO NArmM FEAUCTION ..ot e st sbt e s e s b e e s b e e neeesareesareeesmreesaneean 22
17. [ L=E YL o ol - o o 1o o 13PTSR 24
18. London Borough of Havering Workplace WellDEING.........ccoviiiiiiiiiiieicciee ettt vee e e 25
Appendix of health improvement promotions/campaigns..............cccocovieiriiiieiieiie ettt cre e et saeas 26

Page2 30



Introduction by the Director of Public Health

Local authorities have led action to improve health since the Victorian period when their predecessors
worked to provide residents with clean water and sanitation. As shown in the figure below, our living and
working conditions, whether it be access to good education and employment opportunities, decent
housing, a high quality built and natural environment and a community with strong social capital continue
to be the major determinants of our health and wellbeing.

One could argue then that the
primary function of many Council
services has long been to improve
health. Nonetheless, in 2013,
Council’s took on additional
responsibilities to improve health and
tackle health inequalities and gained
a specialist Public Health Service.

Agriculture This report focuses on what has been
and food

B happening locally and the joint work

Age, sex, and between the Public Health Service,
constitutional

factors other Council services and other

partners across the borough to
Figure 1: The Social Model of Health (Dahlgren & Whitehead, 1991)

improve health.

It is well understood that many public health and wellbeing issues are hugely complex. There is rarely a
single ‘silver bullet’ solution. More often, a concerted response is required on the part of many
stakeholders for a prolonged period. For example, the Council’s Obesity Prevention Strategy2 sets out how
the Council can contribute to national and international action to slow and eventually reverse the rise in
childhood obesity.

For simplicity’s sake, the particular contribution of the Council’s Public Health Service and our partners to
improve the health of local residents has been described in terms of three interlinked workstreams: -
Section 1: Putting health and wellbeing into all policy, systems and partnerships

Section 2: Commissioning health improvement services

Section 3: Social marketing for behaviour change, such as nudging residents towards healthier choices

Hopefully, it will provide the reader with an idea of our general approach to health improvement, an
overview what has been achieved from January 2017 to September 2018 and our plans for the coming

year.

Mark Ansell, Acting Director of Public Health

! Health improvement is one of the three core functions of public health - the others being health protection and healthcare
public health. An annual health protection report summarises activity in this area.

? https://www.havering.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/957/preventing of obesity strategy.pdf

3
Page 31


https://www.havering.gov.uk/downloads/20073/public_health
https://www.havering.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/957/preventing_of_obesity_strategy.pdf
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC3-mRp4XdAhUS3xoKHUcODHwQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.researchgate.net/figure/The-main-influences-on-health-according-to-Dahlgren-and-Whitehead_fig1_288430910&psig=AOvVaw2WYHPDBC7fvHLQ1BZthl0r&ust=1535186936443621

Section 1: Health and wellbeing in policy, systems and partnerships
Embedding health and wellbeing into policy and systems is a collaborative response to the greatest health challenges

of today; those of non-communicable diseases such as diabetes, health inequities and inequalities, and increasing

health and social care costs. It means routinely considering the impact of decision-making on health and wellbeing

and influencing the dete

rminants of health.

Partnership working is key to maximising good health and addressing health inequalities. Local authorities are

experienced in partnership working, which has meant that the Havering Public Health Service benefited both from

established relationships, and easily established partnerships with other services and external partners.

1.  Health impact assessment of the Local Plan

Physical
and mental
health and

wellbeing

Wider
factors:
Housing,
education

employment

Tobacco
harm
reduction

Built and
natural
environ-

ment
Safe

environ-
ment

Health in

all

Policies Obesity

prevention

Workplace
health and
wellbeing

Background

Natural and built environments play a major role in
health and wellbeing. The environment can have
positive effects on both established and incoming
communities which can last for generations. Good
planning can result in health benefits arising from, for
example, less opportunity for criminal behaviour,
stronger community cohesion, or more physical activity.

Key facts

e The Local Plan for Havering guides future growth and
development in the borough.

e A health impact assessment was undertaken during

development of the draft Local Plan and again, when

changes were made following consultation.

Recent actions

*  Public Health and Planning worked together to conduct a prospective desktop health impact assessment of the
Local Plan. This was an iterative process conducted alongside development of the draft Local Plan.

* A Health Impact Assessment Report was produced that explained the steps undertaken, and the contribution
that the health impact assessment process had made.

* Following consultation feedback, the Local Plan was re-assessed to ensure the potential impacts of the changes
proposed through the consultation exercise were taken into consideration for their positive or negative impacts
and any mitigating factors.

Main successes/outcomes

* Local Plan will require developers to undertake health impact assessments on all major developments.

* The process demonstrated a very practical approach to health in all policies, and led to further interest in
assessing other strategies and policies for their impact on health. This subsequently led to a broader programme
of work (see 2. - next page).

Plans for 18-19
* In preparation for implementation of the Local Plan, Public Health is working with planning colleagues to embed
health impact processes into planning procedures.

®  Public Health will support teams and services to undertake in-depth health impact assessments on large-scale
major building developments.

Pagé 32



2.

Health in all Policies

Background

Health in All Policies means systematically considering the
implications of decisions for likely impact on health and
wellbeing. The approach attempts to maximise potential
for improving health, minimise any negative impacts on

health, and reduce health inequalities.3

Recent actions

This phase of Health in All Policies was a progression
from the health impact assessment of the Local Plan
(see previous page). It was agreed to undertake a pilot

approach to jointly assess the impact on both

equalities (protected characteristics) and health and

wellbeing.

Everyone to
maximise their
capabilities and

have control over
their lives

Create fair
employment
and good
work for all

Giving every
child the best
start in life

Health in

all policies

Ensure
healthy
standard of
living for all

Strengthen
the role and
impact of ill-
health
prevention

Create and
develop
healthy and
sustainable
places and
communities,

The Council’s respective leads for public health and

equalities, with advice from the Legal Team, designed a combined equality and health impact assessment form.

This is used as a first stage in the process; report authors re-evaluate their initiatives and consider where further
health and wellbeing gains might be made. The form helps to identify any initiatives that have substantial
impact, which will then become the subject of a full health impact assessment.

At the same time as the combined equality and
health impact assessment was developed, Public
Health worked with the Council Development
Team to health impact assess the economic
strategy.

Main successes/outcomes

Equalities and health impact assessment form
developed.

Health impact assessment of the economic
strategy undertaken.

Plans for 18-19

Evaluate the extent to which the equalities and
health impact assessment form is facilitating the
health in all policies approach.

Public health to deliver information and training

Health

behaviours
30%

Socio-economic
factors
40%

Clinical care
20%

Built
environment
10%

Smoking 10% Education Access to care Environmental
10% 10% quality
5%
Diet/exercise Employment Quiality of care Built
10% 10% 10% environment
5%
Alcohol use 5% Income
10%
Poor sexual Family/social
health 5% support
5%
Community
Safety
5%

Figure 2: Relative contribution of the determinants of health
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/health-all-policies-manua-ff0.pdf

sessions about health in all policies to Council services, and support teams to undertake full health impact

assessments of other major areas of work identified.

3 LGA Health in all policies: a manual for local government

Paée 33




Mental health and wellbeing

Healthy
schools

Physical
health
(obesity,
long term

conditions) Irlenltfl
nealth

Suicide

prevention

Background
Taking care of mental health is just as important
as looking after physical health.

The Havering multi-disciplinary Mental Health
Partnership Board, chaired by Adult Social Care,
oversaw the approach to mental health
provision and promotion in Havering, and
reports to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

promotion

Children’s mental health is also a local priority
(see later pages).

Key facts
* One in four adults will be affected by a mental

Workplace Health
health champions

health problem in their lifetime.
* There has been an acceptance nationally that
mental health needs to be given parity of

esteem with physical health.

Recent actions

Public Health has both led and supported partnerships:

e Initially chairing the Mental Health Promotion Subgroup for the MH Partnership Board to promote good mental
health, and subsequently handing over to the voluntary sector to chair. The Subgroup organises promotional
events to coincide with Mental Health Awareness Week, which is supported by health champions.

* Chairing the multiagency Suicide Prevention Steering Group for Havering, Barking & Dagenham, and Redbridge.

*  Chairing the Havering Children and Young People Mental Health Transformation Group which provides a forum
for cross-sector and cross-agency working to promote good practice and communication across the system. It
reports to the BHR CAMHS Transformation Strategic Partnership Group (see later pages)

* Contributed to relevant strategies, including the dementia strategy and the Adult Social Care-led autism
strategy™- in respect of achieving improved health outcomes for people with autism, with a focus on accessibility
to mainstream health and social care services strategy.

Main successes/outcomes

* Health promotion throughout the year, including article in Living (Feb 18), promoting good mental health and
availability of Talking Therapies service.

* Health champions trained in mental health awareness.

* Mental health included in workplace health programme of work.

*  Well attended mental health awareness week promotional events.

Plans for 18-19

*  Priority focus on the issue of suicide prevention (see later page).

* Continue to support partners in promoting good mental health, including through continued recruitment and
training of health champions and through workplace health programme (separate pages), and supporting
priority workstreams such as those on autism and dementia.

“ltis recognised that autism is not a mental health problem, although is associated with higher risk of mental ill-health

Pagef 34



Mental Health Training and Support for Havering Schools

Background
Mental health training and support for
Training for schools is delivered by many different
school staff . . . . .
provider organisations, and funding of this
- comes from disparate sources and is
Specialist Everyday . . . .
mental health class-based available for varying periods. It is closely
(Sci\,(,',ﬁ;) practice linked to the Health and Wellbeing in

Schools Service (see later page).

Mental Health
Training and

sus’::rr,gglzor The Havering Mental Health Transformation
Implementation Group has members from

Awareness-
raising and Resilience-

tr:g‘:gst?r building services. To ensure equitable awareness of,
and access to, training and support
opportunities, members identified a need to

across council, NHS and voluntary sector

Counselling
services produce a resource for schools that

presents this in a concise, coherent format.
The resulting mental health training and

support for Havering schools resource® was

published on the Havering Family Services Hub Professionals Gateway in July 2018.

Recent actions

A standardised template was developed by Public Health which mental health training and support providers
completed.

This was collated and approved by the group before being published online in a location accessible to all school
staff. As a result of presentations by members of the group to each other, all members have a good
understanding of their collective offer and are able to signpost to each other’s training as appropriate.

The resource will be updated on a termly basis going forward so that it remains up-to-date and relevant.

The resource is promoted to schools via existing networks, meetings and training sessions.

Main successes/outcomes

A complex mix of training provision and funding has been simplified into a ‘one-stop’ overview.
Providers contributing to the resource have been asked to provide a seminar at Havering’s Safeguarding Week to
help bring the resource to life.

Plans for 18-19

Headteachers and other senior leaders are joining the Mental Health Transformation Implementation group
from September 2018 which will enable greater input from schools to ensure that the mental health training and
support for Havering schools resource is relevant and user-friendly.

Schools’ engagement with the training and support on offer is being tracked by the providers. This will enable
targeted communication and promotion to those schools where take-up is low.

> https://familyserviceshub.havering.gov.uk/kb5/havering/directory/advice.page?id=IXOXXtDG3zU

Paée 35


https://familyserviceshub.havering.gov.uk/kb5/havering/directory/advice.page?id=IX0XXtDG3zU

Health and wellbeing in schools service

Mental
health and

Background
School settings have a huge influence on a child’s

emotional
wellbeing

future health outcomes, and evidence is beginning

Reducing to emerge linking health and wellbeing with

substance
misuse

Oral health 6
educational attainment”. The Council has

established relationships with schools in the

borough, and Public Health works with colleagues
Health &

wellbeing
in schools

and teams across the Council to help schools to

Obesity create positive and healthy environments.

prevention

Key facts

Havering’s Health and Wellbeing in Schools
Tobacco Workplace

harm health and
reduction wellbeing

Service:
e s funded by Public Health, Havering Catering

Services and Havering Sports Collective,

e s atraded service, which offers additional

support to schools to achieve Healthy Schools London awards, and delivers training for school staff on a range of
health and wellbeing topics,

promotes a whole school approach to mental health and emotional wellbeing, healthy eating, physical activity
and other PSHE topics.

Recent actions

Ongoing training and support have been provided with additional courses introduced following work with
stakeholders and school staff to identify further needs.

Termly network meetings have been established, enabling sharing of best practice and promoting support and
services for all schools in Havering.

Main successes/outcomes

Healthy Schools London awards at the end of the 2017/18 school year: 34 bronze, 17 silver, 8 gold.

22 schools bought into the service during 2017/18.

Training courses developed and delivered: Promoting Positive Mental Health in the Classroom (Nov 17 and Mar
18)’.

Support to schools to prepare for new curriculum content on Sex and Relationships Education, with training on
Policy into Practice delivered Feb 18.

Plans for 18-19

Continue to provide an offer to schools that supports wider action on reducing obesity and improving sexual
health.

Continuing to encourage schools to buy into the service and work towards Healthy Schools London awards.
Continuing to develop the training offer, particularly around relationships and sex education in the lead up to
this becoming mandatory in the curriculum from September 2020.

® http://www.healthyschools.london.gov.uk/healthy-schools-london-evaluation
’ For both training sessions, 100% of attendees rated the training as useful in their course evaluations

Page8 36


http://www.healthyschools.london.gov.uk/healthy-schools-london-evaluation

6. Health and wellbeing in early years settings

Healthy
eating,
breastfeeding
, starting solid
food

Parenting and
home
learning

Oral health

Physical
activity
Infection
control and
Immunisation

Speech,
language,
communicati
on

Early
cognitive
development

Support for
children with
SEN

Background

Ensuring all children have the best start in life and
ensuring school readiness is one of the most
important factors in improving the health and
wellbeing of future generations. Building on the
success of Healthy Schools London, the Healthy
Early Years London Programme was introduced as a
pilot programme.?

Background

e An awards pathway that encourages early years
settings to evaluate their current practice and to
steadily improve and progress through progressive
awards; from First Steps, through to Bronze, Silver
and Gold.

e A central feature of the programme is for
participating settings to work in partnership with

parents to support the physical, emotional and social health and development of the children in their care. The

pilot phase has been completed, and the full London programme will be launched in September 2018.

Recent actions

* Havering was among the first cohort of boroughs to participate in the Healthy Early Years London pilot project,

which ran June-November 2017. As one of the six boroughs from the pilot, the local project was delivered

through a partnership between the Public Health Service and Learning and Achievement teams.

*  Twelve early years settings were invited to join the local pilot project.

Main successes/outcomes

* Three Havering settings achieved their first steps award during the pilot project.

* Three Havering settings achieved their bronze award during the pilot project.

* Two Havering settings went on beyond the pilot phase to achieve their silver award.

* Participating in the pilot phase has helped to generate additional interest locally in participating in the

programme.

Plans for 18-19

Public Health Service and Learning and Achievement teams will be:

*  Continuing a phased roll-out of the programme.

* Delivering introductory training sessions to support settings in South Hornchurch to join the programme.

e Continuing to support the first cohort of settings to achieve awards.

&  Better Health for All Londoners (Aug 2017) (consultation on the London Equalities Strategy)

Paae 37



Suicide prevention

Background

During 2013-15 there were 47 suicides in Havering
which is lower (better) than rates for London and
England. Despite Havering being in this better

Emergency

Educational care and position, it is recognised that every suicide has a
outcomes emergency
services

devastating impact on families and communities. It
has been estimated that for every life lost to suicide,
between six and sixty people can be directly affected.

pf;:::;n In terms of the financial costs to society, it has been
Or‘:g;f;r estimated that the economic cost of each death by
suicide of someone of working age is estimated to be
£1.67 million.
Waorkplace Substance
health misuse Key facts

Suicides are not inevitable and many are

preventable; concerted action across a broad range

of factors must happen in order to make a difference and reduce numbers of suicide.

Recent actions

A multi-agency BHR steering group was set up in 2017, chaired by LBH Director of Public Health and vice chair
BHR CCG mental health clinical lead, and responsible for developing a strategy and ensuring wide engagement.
The steering group held a stakeholder workshop, attended by over 100 individuals who represented a wide
range of organisations; including key stakeholders such as BHRUT, Transport Police, Safeguarding Boards, Job
Centre, voluntary sector, etc. The workshop made a significant contribution to finalising the strategy and
developing the actions.

Main successes/outcomes

A BHR-wide strategy developed, jointly led/delivered by LBH, LBBD, LBR, BHR CCG, and NELFT.

It was agreed that governance be to all three Health and Wellbeing Boards, through the local mental health
partnership boards/committees.

Some early achievements include facilitating suicide prevention training for a range of agencies across BHR®, and
supporting national awareness events such as “Small Talk Saves Lives”.

Plans for 18-19
Implement the high level priority actions set out in the strategy across all three boroughs:

Learning lessons from suicides and attempted suicides and putting in place measures that reduce the likelihood
of such circumstances reoccurring

Workforce training™

Signposting people who are bereaved by suicide to appropriate support

Strengthening support available to people in crisis and at immediate risk of suicide

Review the care of patients who self harm

Ensuring effective risk assessment is incorporated into routine care by GPs

° Training funded by Tower Hamlets Community Education Provider Network
10 Havering Safeguarding is including the topic of suicide prevention in the 2018 multi-agency safeguarding event

10
Page 38



8. Infantfeeding: starting solid foods

Background

R . This is one workstream from a wider programme
educing

infections/ of work from the obesity prevention strategy, and
impact on which is being led by the Havering Infant Feeding

A&E
Steering Group.

Infant

attachment Key facts
and

Starting development

Breastfeedin
g promotion

and support * The World Health Organization recommends

solid that babies are exclusively breastfed for the first 6
foods months of life. From 6 months, once infants
show signs of being developmentally ready, solid
foods can be gradually introduced.

Obesity Oral health * Baby-led weaning with finger foods

prevention promotion encourages babies to be exposed to lots of

different flavours and textures, learn where their

mouth is and how to self-feed and take control of
their own appetite.

* There are competing and confusing messages
for parents, and health visitors and early years practitioners are frequently asked about solid foods; when to start
introducing them, what to introduce first, what to avoid, what to do if baby chokes and so on.

Recent actions

* Starting Solid Foods workshop session content was developed by Public Health, Early Help and NELFT.

* Health visitors and early years practitioners invited families to the sessions, including via routine checks, health
clinics, and the Infant Feeding Café at Collier Row Children’s Centre.

* A monthly session for 12-15 families began in January 2018 at Collier Row Children’s Centre, co-delivered by a
health visitor and early years practitioner.

Main successes/outcomes

* Three Starting Solid Food workshop sessions were held between Jan 17 — March 18, with between 12-15 families
attending each session.

*  Pre-and post- session questionnaires are being completed by parents, and will be evaluated in 2018/19.

* Initial feedback has been positive e.g. “Fantastic and useful workshop that has given me needed knowledge and
understanding as well as increased confidence to give my baby appropriate and healthy meals”.

* Akey success to date has been the partnership between LBH and NELFT — both are operating on low budgets
and capacity so this has been an efficient way of meeting needs despite financial challenges.

Plans for 18-19

* Early Help and health visiting teams are currently looking at capacity to extend delivery of the workshop to other
children’s centres during 2018/19.

* Like Collier Row, St Kilda Children’s Centre hosts health clinics and an Infant Feeding Café so it’s likely this will be
the second centre to offer the workshop.

* A project will be explored to consider the feasibility of training volunteers to deliver family cooking sessions
across the borough, thus building on the Starting Solid Foods work.

11
Page 39



9. Air quality
Background

The topic of air quality has been included in a
previous Health Protection Forum report. Itis

Health impact also included in this report, as it is part of a broad
assessment

approach to health improvement.

Healthy Key facts

Behaviour hool . . . .
change sdneelk * Air pollution can damage lives with harmful
programme

effects on human health, the economy and the

environment.
* Itis the largest environmental risk to the
public’s health, contributing to cardiovascular

disease, lung cancer and respiratory diseases.

Health
champion

RICEIGNE admissions, visits to emergency departments and

Workplace
health

* Itincreases the chances of hospital

respiratory and cardiovascular symptoms which

interfere with everyday life, especially for people

who are already vulnerable.

* Bad air quality affects everyone and it has a disproportionate impact on the young and old, the sick and the
poor.

* Changing behaviours and attitudes towards sustainable solutions are part of a broad societal response to reduce
air pollutant levels, which also include providing infrastructure and green spaces that encourage walking and
cycling as well as increased use of public transport, low/zero emission vehicles, and traffic control.

Recent actions

Havering Public Protection (Environmental Health and Smarter Travel) led this programme of work. Public Health

provided support to the air quality working group which delivered a wide range of actions, including:

e Air quality action plan and consultation exercise.

e Development of specially created character for local air quality improvement campaign, funded in part by the
Mayor’s Air Quality Fund.

e Schools programme, including development of the script for a film, the live performance in schools and
associated lesson plans.

e Awareness raising through the public health communications, and through the commissioned health champion
programme and healthy schools.

e Embedding consideration of air quality through the Local Plan health impact assessment (earlier page).

Main successes/outcomes

* Bythe end of 2017, 37 primary schools received the “Theatre in Education” bespoke air quality production,
featuring Miles the Mole, with lesson plans and school packs. 57 primary schools received the air quality
campaign packs containing video, anti-idling banners, posters and lesson plans.

*  Miles the Mole campaign was shortlisted as one of four finalists in the National Air Quality Awards under the Air
Quality Communications Initiative of the Year category.

Plans for 18-19
* Continue to support improvements in air quality through the air quality working group, and through health
impact assessment.

12
Page 40



10. Empowering Parents Empowering Communities
Background

Empowering Parents, Empowering Communities (EPEC) is

Resilient . . .
e a proven method of prevention and early intervention

that helps families achieve the best start in life for their
School Mental children. Itis a low cost parenting programme
— HeBeteE combining peer-led parenting groups with training,

Empowering supervision and support provided by parenting specialists

parents, based in local services. South London and Maudsley NHS

empowering
communities

(EPEC) Foundation Trust’s EPEC team has partnered with 15

Behaviour organisations in England to establish local EPEC hubs.

h Add i . . .
(posttive mequaltice Havering successfully applied to develop a hub in the

e borough. Havering receives 18 months of support from
the national team to set up an EPEC hub. Havering’s

Resilient

amilies commitment has been to host the hub (early

help/children’s centres), fund a coordinator for 18

months, provide admin support and finance non-pay
costs such as parent group leader expenses and creche facilities, and to recruit, train and supervise 16 EPEC parent
group leaders and run 10 EPEC parent courses for up to 100 parents over a 12 month period.

Key facts

Expected outcomes include:

* Peer supporters gain an accredited qualification thus improving access to employment
* Increased uptake of the 2 year offer

* Increased child emotional and behaviour development

* Increased positive parenting behaviour, confidence and skills, and parent wellbeing

Recent actions

Three members of the early help team attended EPEC training while the recruitment of the EPEC hub coordinator
was taking place. This meant the programme recovered lost time as result of late implementation and is now
keeping pace with its milestones. A further advantage has been that wider training has created a larger resource to
support the project. The EPEC programme has been very well communicated and other stakeholders (health visiting
and maternity) are promoting the project to aid volunteer recruitment and course attendance.

Main successes/outcomes

e Hub co-ordinator recruited and attended 3 day hub familiarisation and training event.

e 6 volunteer parent peer supporters recruited who will begin their training between July-October 2018.

e Contributed/influenced development of the national programme design, including:
e Setting up a network team.
e |nvestigating accreditation of the Havering-designed EPEC training course with AQA so that all parent peer
volunteers receive an accredited certificate of training.

Plans for 18-19

e Deliver three EPC courses September - December 2018 (from three children’s centres; Chippenham Road,
Hilldene and Ingrebourne. Further courses will be arranged for 2019.

e To agree the AQA accreditation with the EPEC national team.

13
Page 41



11. Localities: Children’s Project

Background
The primary aim of the Havering locality
Bf;ﬁ;;’;ﬁ:;‘ﬁ:f approach is to improve the quality of life and
reducing H H i ili
repeating circumstances of the individual/families
stories") concerned whilst, at the same time, saving
Reducing duplication in the system and making best use
duplication in the Emoschailieah .
P & wellbeing of the resources available.
system
Children's In 2017 it was set out that this would be

Locality
Project

achieved through establishing locality-based
virtual teams which could include statutory
Prevention: avoid agencies and voluntary and community
intensive services Resilient families . .
Ef i S organisations who would work together to focus
on what the individual at the centre of the
approach needed.!

Resilient children
This is a summary of the first project established
as part of the Children’s Locality Model, and

which has been set up in the North Locality.”> The project focuses on children and their families below statutory

threshold but where early intervention could prevent escalation and need for higher level services and is concerned
with children’s emotional wellbeing. Families who access the service do so through a single access point and are
assigned a key worker who triages their case. The key worker then engages with a virtual multidisciplinary team,
thus avoiding the need for families to repeatedly explain their stories. To date, virtual teams have comprised Council
Children’s Services, schools and GPs.

Key facts
* The project is based on a PDSA™ improvement model.
* It was planned to work with 20-25 families Nov 17 — Sept 18, with referrals made via two schools in the locality:

Hilldene Primary and Drapers Academy (senior school). Processes were established, including:

(a) data sharing protocols, which included parental consent for referral. Part of the process meant that a key
case worker would be the link between the family and other disciplines, and who would develop a care plan
in consultation with parents. This approach was in response to parents and schools’ feedback that the
established process was confusing for parents and often took a long time to get a response, also that parents
were have to repeat “their story” again and again to different professionals.

(b) Parents completing an “Outcome Star” at the outset and again at the end of the intervention, so that change
and improvement could be evaluated.

Recent actions

17 families had been referred by the end of August 2018. Main areas of need are associated with health, finance,
housing, and behaviour. Each family has benefited from a programme of specifically-tailored interventions, including
parenting support, and support with finances, housing, employment and health and wellbeing.

" This approach was led by a design group comprising the Council, Clinical Commissioning Group, NELFT, Local Pharmaceutical
Committee, Havering Healthwatch and Havering Community and Voluntary Sector Compact.

12 There are three localities in Havering: North, Central and South.

B plan do study act — which is an approach that looks to achieve incremental improvements through a continuous cycle of
appraisal, and small step changes.

14
Page 42



Main successes/outcomes

* All agencies worked well together to establish processes, as well as learning lessons and overcoming barriers
related to ways of working, and organisational cultures.

*  Fewer families referred than anticipated —partly due to identifying suitable candidates from the high number of
families with complex needs — and partly due to establishing processes and complexity of referral routes. One
point of learning has been to broaden referral routes (i.e. to include. health visitors and housing colleagues).

+  Considerable benefits and good outcomes among families engaged with project™.

Plans for 18-19

* Ongoing evaluation (from the PDSA approach) suggests that the referral process could be simplified, and this is
currently in development.

* The project is set to continue, incorporating changes to referral process as above.

1% Details not included because of confidentiality

15
Page 43



Section 2: Commissioning health improvement services

Local authorities are responsible for providing a range of public health services including health visiting, sexual
health services, drug and alcohol treatment services, NHS health checks, and school nursing services. Over half of
Havering Council’s public health grant is spent on such health improvement services. Because of affordability, some
services that promote behaviour change, such as smoking cessation and health champion services receive a very
modest investment and rely, in the main, on partnership working to achieve health improvement outcomes.

12. NHS Health Checks

Health
champions

moking
cessation/
tobacco
harm
eductio

Earlier
intervention/
management

Healthy
weight

NHS
Health
checks

Increased
physical
activity

Mental/

physical
health

Dementia

Background

Local authorities are mandated to provide NHS
Health Checks free of charge to local residents.
The health check is a national risk assessment,
and awareness raising programme for those
aged 40 to 74 who have not previously been
diagnosed with a cardio vascular condition.

The check, which should be offered to eligible
individuals every five years, systematically
measures a range of risk factors that are known
to interact and affect risk of developing heart

oflongterm awareness
conditions Alcohol

harm stroke. The check takes about 20-30 minutes,

reduction

disease, type 2 diabetes, kidney disease and

and offers individuals the opportunity to

understand their personal CVD risk profile and

receive personalised advice about achieving a
healthier lifestyle. If appropriate, treatment or medication may also be prescribed. In Havering, local GPs are
commissioned to provide NHS health checks

Key facts

National evidence®® shows that:

e for every 30-40 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is found to have hypertension.

o for every 80-200 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is diagnosed with type 2 diabetes.

e for every 6-10 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is identified as being at high risk of CVD.

The national indicator describing performance will be changing to a 5 year rolling performance figure.

Recent actions

Under-performance of the Havering NHS Health Check programme in 2015-17 threatened the overall delivery of the
local five year programme. In 2017/18, a remedial improvement plan was put in place, through the Joint
Commissioning Unit’s new approach and focus on contract monitoring, Public Health engaging a peer educator for 7
hours per week to engage with primary care practitioners, and delivery of training to practice nurses. This achieved
the results set out below, although the two year historic under-performance in 2015-17 will continue to affect 5 year
rolling performance figures going forward.

Main successes/outcomes

'3 NHS Health Check Expert Scientific and Clinical Advisory Panel (2017) Emerging evidence on the NHS Health Check: findings and
recommendations

16
Page 44



During the final quarter of 17/18, the highest number of NHS Health Check offers were recorded in any one
quarter during the previous five year cycle, which brought the health check programme performance back on
track. Local GPs are thanked for all their efforts in responding to the Council’s request for support, particularly
whilst dealing with all of the other pressing priorities and pressures that the NHS is managing.

Plans for 18-19

Refresh contract and issue to GP practices, to reflect the NHS Health Check Best Practice Guidance published Dec
2017.

Apply the lessons learned from the factors that led to historic underperformance (i.e. that health checks are a
minor aspect of GP business), and thus the need to maintain working relationships with GPs. Where competing
priorities for the Council’s Joint Commissioning Unit leads to insufficient resources being devoted to sustaining
relationships with GP practices, this will inevitably lead to a reduction in performance.

NHS Health Check training to be provided to practice nurses and healthcare assistants in Oct 2018.

To distribute activity equally across the five year period; so sending invitations to 20% of the eligible population
each year. However, the historic under-performance 2015-17 and remedial action in 2017-18, will have a long
lasting impact on how Havering is described in achieving the new performance indicator.

17
Page 45



13.

Sexual Health

Background

While sexual relationships are essentially private matters, good
Prevent un-
planned

DREEEEEE rates of teenage pregnancy, protecting vulnerable groups from

sexual health is important to individuals and society. Reducing

sexual abuse and exploitation, and improving diagnosis of HIV

Identify Reduce all have an impact on the quality of life for those affected.

sexual teenage . .
exploitation pregnancy Local Authorities are mandated to provide sexual health

Sexual
health

services. The local contract expires Sept 18. A re-procurement
has been undertaken with B&D and Redbridge.
Key facts

- e Following a steady decline in teenage pregnancies, there
e Ll was a slight increase in 2016. Young parents and their children

of HIV
more likely to experience poorer outcomes.

e There are higher rates of abortion in Havering (22.5)

compared to England (17.2) and London (20.7). Approximately one-third of abortions among women aged
under-25 are repeat abortions. Havering (31.7%) is higher than England (26.7%), similar to London (30.7%)."°
Havering has had very low uptake of long acting reversible contraception (LARC). LARC and emergency hormonal
contraception can help to reduce unplanned and unwanted pregnancy.

People who are unaware that they are HIV positive are more likely to have poorer health outcomes (through
delayed treatment, and risk passing on infection). The HIV prevention contract expires in 2018. BHRUT is
participating in a national Prep trial*” which aims to reduce risk of HIV infection.

What has been done

Public Health has worked with GPs and CCG to increase the number of GPs offering LARC. GPs have attended
training and established an inter-practice referral scheme.

As well as jointly commissioning a BHR integrated sexual health service, Havering (PH & JCU) will become the
lead authority for the three borough sexual health commissioning function.

Havering is participating in a London-wide sexual health transformation programme which includes a sexual
health e-testing service, and an integrated sexual health tariff.

Havering is working with B&D to jointly commission an HIV prevention service when existing contracts expire.
Havering contributes to the London wide HIV prevention programme “Do IT London”.

Havering participate in the freely available self-sampling HIV testing service known as “test.hivself”.

Main successes/outcomes

Increased access and choice for women wanting LARC

Plans for 18-19

Increased focus on preventing teen pregnancy, including C card training for staff at the Cocoon, and C-card
(condoms) accessible from the Cocoon.

Conclude integrated sexual health service tender, and award contract to commence 1 October 2018.%
The development of a clinically led sexual health network.

E-service home testing kits available in clinic from June 2018.

Commence the LBH/LBBD HIV prevention tendering process.

'® PHE Sexual and reproductive health profiles (2017 data)
7 Prep (Pre-exposure prophylaxis) trial is commissioned by NHS England for those at high risk of HIV infection
¥ Dec 18 update: this was achieved

18
Page 46



14.

Drug and alcohol harm reduction
Background
People who misuse drugs and alcohol risk their own health
Loesient (short and long term) and can negatively impact the health
° and wellbeing of their families and communities.
Healthier of::rftlzl(:ﬁg/
communities re-offending K f t
ey facts
5‘::::::6 e A comprehensive multi-agency three year drug and
treatment alcohol harm reduction strategy (2016-19) was developed

and a detailed action plan agreed. The strategy focused on

Healthier
families three themes: preventing harm to individuals, preventing

harm to families, and preventing harm to the wider

Healthi . . .
in;?,idL:Z[s community. The majority of actions were completed

during the first two years.

. Alcohol plays a significant part in almost half of all

violent assaults, more than half of domestic violence
incidents, marital/ relationship breakdown and road traffic accidences.
Episodes of heavy drinking (binge drinking) contribute towards town centre crime and disorder.
Alcohol features in around a quarter of serious case reviews of at risk children, while drugs are implicated in 20%
Use of drugs also fuels criminal behaviour associated with buying/selling substances.
Havering commissions substance misuse treatment services, which contributes to a wider prevention strategy
involving a range of other organisations including criminal justice partners, pharmacists (needle exchange
programme), other health services (e.g. maternity, sexual health, GPs) as well as town centre management,
trading standards, licensing, etc.

Recent actions

Many of the strategy actions completed. In addition Tier Four Assessment Panel transferred to provider.

Main successes/outcomes

Strengthened partnership working around safeguarding and working with schools through the healthy schools
programme to prevent harm to children as a result of substance misuse (i.e. both as potential future users of
substances, and as a result of living in a family that is affected by substance of misuse).

Draft pathway for dual diagnosis (mental health and substance misuse) has been developed by WDP & NELFT.
Waiting times for treatment now below the national average.

People at high risk seen within 2 weeks.

Testing for Hepatitis C above the national average.

Plans for 18-19
Complete the current action plan, including

Focus on actions that strengthen the partnership approach to substance misuse harm reduction, including
induction and ongoing training for staff of services.

Initiate a drugs deaths review panel.

Agree shared care protocols (for alcohol misuse) with GPs (protocols being considered by CCG Area Prescribing
Committee Sept 18).

Finalise dual diagnosis pathway (mental health / substance misuse).

Set up a multi-agency working group to refresh the strategy.

19
Page 47



15. Health visiting and school nursing services

Background
Healthy The Healthy Child Programme includes the Health
;?;:?EQ Visiting Service for children aged 0-5 and School
Attachment, a;rt;‘l'::z;'t‘lf Nursing Service for 5-19 years. It aims to improve
d:::‘?fhn:;t the health of children and young people and their

readiness

families. The Healthy Child programme is a
universal programme available to all children and
Healthy aims to ensure that every child gets the good start

Screening and .
immanisations Child that they need.

Programme
Key facts
e  Health visitors deliver a universal new birth
Breastfeeding

promotion
and support

Substance

o visit, 1 year health review and 2-2.5 year health
misuse

review, and targeted antenatal and 6-8 week

Safeguarding

health reviews where a risk has been identified.
e  School nurses deliver hearing and vision

screening for reception year, the national child
measurement programme in Reception and Year 6, primary and secondary school drop-in sessions, and health
promotion topics for children, young people and parents. The service works alongside the healthy schools
programme, and promotes a range of public health priorities.

e  The contract for the healthy child programme is delivered by NELFT (until March 2020).

Recent actions

o A multi-agency workshop was held with the aim of improving local services, learning from good practice
elsewhere, and ensuring that the contract provides the best outcomes for children. Over 70 attendees were
present, drawn from the healthy child programme service, Early Help Service, SEND, Education support, Public
Health England, commissioners from Havering CCG and Essex County Council.

e Both the school nursing and health visiting services have become an integral part of the children’s locality
project and are part of the multi-disciplinary team working with identified families.

e The health visiting service is supporting the EPEC programme by discussing options for volunteering with parents
and signposting families to the parent support groups.

Main successes/outcomes

e Lessons learned from the workshop are being applied to current health visitor and school nursing services.

e Health Visiting work closely with children centre staff to provide infant feeding cafés.

e Health Visiting has implemented the Ages and Stages development questionnaire at the 2 % year check and
onward referrals are made where develop delay is found.

Plans for 18-19

As part of the review of the services in preparation for re-procurement in 2020:

* Continue to learn from other commissioners, by holding further event(s) during 2018-19.

* Undertake a service user engagement work programme.

e Health visitor and school services continue to contribute to the Children’s Locality Project, the Healthy Schools
Programme, and the “Empowering Parents Empowering Communities” project (described elsewhere in this
report.

20
Page 48



Section 3: Social marketing
“Prevention, it is often said, is better than cure. If people didn’t smoke, drank less, had better diets and exercised

more, the burden of disease would be reduced. But what is the role of the state in persuading people to alter their

lifestyles?”

As a local government briefing says “The traditional approach dictates that in cases where something causes

serious harm, such as drug use, restricting choice or even an outright ban is appropriate. However, where it is

less clear cut, the argument goes, the state should leave it to individual choice. But this ignores the fact that

there is a variety of ways in between that behaviour can be influenced from encouraging and incentivising

people through to subtly guiding choice in a certain direction. This can include enticing people to take up

activities or using subliminal marketing. For example, stressing social norms can encourage people to change

behaviour because they want to be alike. Alternatively it can involve making an environment less conducive

to someone making an unhealthy choice. An example of this would be making salad a default option as a side

instead of chips or placing clear signs to steps rather than escalators.”

The above is known as behavioural change, influencing those lifestyle choices that have a direct and obvious impact

on health, such as diet and exercise, but also other socioeconomic determinants of health, such as education and

crime. The term “behaviour change” encapsulates a wide range of approaches, and there is a body of literature on

this concept. For the purposes of this report, behaviour change is being described in terms of nudges, hugs, shoves

and bans.

Nudges: making the healthier choice the easier/more attractive choice

O

O

O

Hugs: rewarding a behaviour
Shoves: tougher measures that restrict choice

Bans: using legislation and enforcement to prevent choice

All of the health improvement initiatives described earlier in this report rely to some extent or other on changing

behaviours; whether it is through the substance misuse service rewarding compliance to a treatment regimen with a

leisure centre entry voucher, or through workplace health approaches that provides cycle purchase schemes. Below,

there are some examples of behaviour change elements that are part of the health improvement programmes

described elsewhere in this report.

Nudges:

Hugs

Shoves

Bans

. Creation of built and natural
environments that nudge
people to achieve healthier
lifestyles

. Policies and strategies that
consider impact on health
and incorporate health and
wellbeing into decision-
making

. Workplace wellbeing
initiatives that aim to make
healthier choices the norm,
i.e. increasing physical
activity through lunchtime
walks

¢ The commissioned drug and
alcohol substance misuse
service uses an incentive
scheme that builds a reward
that can be redeemed
against, for example, a
leisure centre/gym visit

e The VeggieRun app
developed by Havering’s
school catering service
rewards children for making
healthy choices whilst
playing the game by
awarding prizes that
encourage physical activity

*  The Health and Wellbeing in
Schools Service supports
schools to develop whole
school food policies which
restrict and channel choice
through implementation of
the Government school
food standards and robust
packed lunch policies

. Cheap cigarettes are known
to be one of the factors that
both influence children to
start smoking and
encourage people to
continue smoking. Public
Health supports Trading
Standards colleagues in
raising awareness among
the public on how to report
sales of illicit tobacco,
including via schools
networks, and via a
roadshow which took place
summer 2018.

% Local Government Association Changing behaviours in public health: to nudge or to shove?

21
Page 49




The following three programmes of work rely almost completely on facilitating behaviour change. All three
incorporate some element of commissioned services, but these are modest investments that are designed to
support a broader approach to health improvement.

16. Tobacco harm reduction

Background

. Smoking remains the leading cause of preventable illness
Children’s

health and and premature death in England.20 The costs of treating

sEnlezs and supporting those who are affected by tobacco smoke

SREp impacts on health and social care, and on employers as a
Healthy alcohol

Schools harm result of workforce absenteeism. Some groups have
reduction

higher rates of smoking, including people with severe

Tobacco
harm

reduction

mental illhealth, and people in routine and manual jobs.

Key facts
Health Mental

inequalities e +  Exposure to second hand smoke has a serious impact
promotion

on health, particularly for children.
Health * lllicit cigarettes are more likely to cause house fires
champions and, because they are cheap, incentivise some groups to

continue smoking. Sales of illicit cigarettes drive criminal

activity and fund organised crime.

*  Switching to vaping is 95% safer than smoking.

Recent actions

Following decommissioning of the local universal stop smoking service in May 2016}, a renewed refocus was placed

on stopping smoking in pregnancy, together with a broader approach to tobacco harm reduction:

*  Public Health and the Joint Commissioning Unit set up a targeted stop smoking service for pregnant women and
those living in the same household as a pregnant woman. Funded through Havering and Barking and Dagenham
public health grants, a BabyClear programme was implemented, which includes training all midwives to screen
all pregnant women for smoking using carbon monoxide monitoring, and provide stop smoking support from the
first midwife appointment.

*  Broader tobacco harm reduction actions have included:

* Joint working between Trading Standards and Public Health on awareness raising about harms of illicit
tobacco and how the public can report where such sales are taking place. A specialist tobacco control
education unit was sited in Romford for a day,”” with health champions supporting engagement with the
public.

* A multi-agency event (June 18) attended by the national PHE lead, presented the evidence about vaping and
second-hand smoke. A wide range of partners agreed to take action to support tobacco harm reduction.

* Optingin to a London-wide online / telephone stop smoking support service (launched May 17).

*  Workplace wellbeing initiatives on tobacco harm reduction, with OneSource HR commencing a review of
smoking and vaping policies.

* Health promotion campaigns throughout the year, and broad internal and external communications.

% https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health
! The universal face to face stop smoking service was decommissioned due to unaffordability
2 A visiting unit, comprising an expert in detection of illicit tobacco, and a detection dog

22
Page 50



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health

Main successes/outcomes

Rates of smoking during pregnancy have fallen in Havering from above-England rates to below-England, with
particularly rapid improvements made over the past two years.
A wide range of partners engaged and signed up to taking action to reduce harms caused by tobacco.

Plans for 18-19

Tobacco harm reduction continues to be a priority for 2018-19.

Support HR and workplace health leads, by completing revisions to workplace policy on smoking, taking into
account latest evidence on harm reduction and vaping.

Work with schools, education and Healthy Schools programme to further reduce the numbers of children who
take up smoking in the first place, including building on the Summer 2018 awareness raising event about illicit
tobacco.

Build on the successes of the specialist stop smoking service for pregnant women; working with BHRUT and CCG
to implement BabyClear Plus, which is a further intervention at the final steps of the ante-natal screening
programme to support women who have been unable/unwilling to stop smoking earlier in their pregnancy.
Explore the potential for working with the Independent British Vape Trade Association with the aim of increasing
local vape shops interest in becoming a member. IBVTA-membership is an indicator of a quality retailer of vape
products, which would mean health professionals and others could more confidently signpost patients.

Public Health, Healthwatch and health champion service will be working together to recruit health champions

from tenants of Queen’s Court (Healthwatch business premises), to promote the health benefits of smoking
cessation/switching to vaping.

23
Page 51



17. Health champions
Background
My Health Matters is a Havering initiative

Mental
health and where local people are trained to connect
emotional

: with residents, employees and communities
wellbeing

Drug and . .
: to raise awareness of health and wellbeing

alcohol Healthy

harm eating and to prompt lifestyle changes. It is part of
reduction

a broad approach to health improvement
including reducing harms caused by

Health tobacco, alcohol, diet and low levels of
Cancer champions . .
awareness Obesity activity, as well as supporting workplace
/ early ICECEIET wellbeing and mental wellbeing
detection .
promotions.
Julsiee Workplace A very modest investment in the
harm health and ) .
reduction wellbeing programme achieves a wide reach, as

health champions are volunteers who
demonstrate a commitment to health

improvement and have a strong connection
with their community. They include elected members, allied health professionals and health practitioners (such as
healthcare assistants and dental hygienists) and non-health professionals who either promote health in the
workplace or the wider community. Health champions complete accredited training which includes behaviour
change, and are key to supporting local health improvement priorities, as well as broader national initiatives. They
can be identified in the workplace by their pin badges.”? A cohort of health champions also support priority health
campaigns.

Recent actions

e 90 health champions were trained during 17-18; and 15 volunteers supported health campaigns. The majority of
health champions wear a badge in work settings which identify that they can be approached on health
improvement matters.

Main successes/outcomes

e 105 events were attended/supported by health champions, including awareness raising events on cancer,
mental health, physical activity, smoking, alcohol and healthy eating. 3,221 local people engaged with a health
champion during 17-18.

e Health champions worked in collaboration with other agencies, including for example a health centre, where
they promoted NHS Health Checks and signposted to physical activity opportunities, including leisure centres,
and with mental health services to promote mental health awareness week in Romford market (May 18).

e Trainee GPs worked with health champions to deliver an outreach project in Romford town centre.

Plans for 18-19
More health champions will be recruited and trained to focus on the key lifestyle factors and issues that impact on
long-term health, and to reduce inequalities.

2 The pin badges were recently redesigned following focus group feedback, followed by a competition to design a badge that
health champions would be more likely to wear.

24
Page 52



18. London Borough of Havering Workplace Wellbeing
Background

Employment is a primary determinant of health?*, with

Healthy good employment impacting both directly and

eating indirectly on the individual, as well as their families and

Drug and Mental communities.
alcohol harm health and
reduction wellbeing

Key facts
* There are good business reasons for improving

Workplace

wellbeing workplace wellbeing: healthier, active and engaged

Health Obesity employees are more productive, have lower levels of
h A ti . B
champions SISO sickness absence and presenteeism.”
* A high number of Council employees live in the

borough, giving the opportunity for LBH workplace

Tobacco
harm

reduction

Healthier wellbeing benefits to reach into the local community.
communities

Recent actions

* The Council is working towards London Healthy
Workplace Charter accreditation of Excellence, which builds on existing wellbeing initiatives such as Havering
Staff Games, sport and physical activity opportunities, and occupational health arrangements.

* The Council’s Workplace Wellbeing Steering Group is chaired by the Director of Children’s Services, who is the SLT
workplace wellbeing champion with representation from HR and other Council Directorates, and support from
Public Health. The Group has drafted a workplace wellbeing action plan covering the eight key themes of the
London Healthy Workplace Charter which are corporate support for wellbeing, health and safety, tobacco and
smoking, attendance, mental health and wellbeing, physical activity, healthy eating, and problematic use of
alcohol/substances.

Main successes/outcomes

* Mental health first aid training delivered to three cohorts.

* The Town Hall Pantry is making ongoing revisions to the menu to encourage healthy eating, for example using
50% wholemeal and 50% white pasta (instead of 100% white) and removing sugary drinks from sale.

A Havering has a heart®® fund-raising lunchtime walk, led by Workplace Wellbeing SLT champion (June 18).

» Staff benefits included corporate-rate membership with Everyone Active, including new Sapphire Centre.

* Health champion reprocurement in 2018 included KPIs to support LBH workplace wellbeing.

Plans for 18-19

Continue to develop the action plan, for example:

* Following the Havering has a heart fundraising walk, further lunchtime walks are planned.

+  Explore the introduction of the calorie-burning StepJockey?’.

¢ Health champion programme will continue to support LBH workplace wellbeing.

* Explore opportunities to raise awareness of workplace health among businesses and SMEs in the borough.

** https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-
health

% https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-work-infographics/the-importance-of-health-and-work

%® Supported British Heart Foundation, and raised £750

7 This originated from a Department of Health funded initiative; evaluation showed that stair climbing increases as a result, with
all of the health benefits that this brings

25
Page 53


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-work-infographics/the-importance-of-health-and-work

Appendix of health improvement promotions/campaigns

Priority

Campaign

2018-19 Health Improvement Communications Calendar

Crvarviaw of Heslth & This b Hivvariog Deap Dives (the after 15th
. Ll e Seclal Cars Mash In Pary] - Migration of;
s s F|.- — Favmriog Harvmring FHOF HILE This b avaring Thi & Hireering Nouieg
E TR Child Povarty Ammsrent]  Localiy Frofies T,
& [r———
Jrobm—y— BHE Director of Fublic Health Annual Repor [Togic b be chosen)
Tobacoo Control and infantfeeding | priority topics promoted all year rownd )
Jurm temre
Washg and Secondhand
Smohs
Edition 152 Eition 15
- ifuritfrading Ca) - Tobame Contral (18]
One Tou
imrrtal Health (L) - ine Oisbetes Smoing Aswrern. stag weil this wirmer Bizshol Awerene Charge for Lite Stroke
Talldng Tharnghes - Dabates wask e | '™ g 1A e R 3 Corvear i [ —— - Pl B AR ) - Dy Jarusiry: AN} '""":_m-“l . - Fasteiton (CBY - Bt WA L5}
Bamirear Heart Haaks snompmisg [icrens Hasith - BIDC & .
oy —— fwniise of mprovicg hasits, |oirmica: acititzy s o ssapdrar s oo Sen sk 1L _ g |Eoking daaceran: ez comune iL5) e | B ) _ Bt hasge for e Iporc & ha S cking D (15
Sp—] aarting {151 rtwTTteag T Ba Cnar on Cancar RS |, soptoner juste) . L s e F | S S B - mtrision |15 ot - et a5 s}
[ ma AR, 7B e AMIF: (B Ll | = cdoem (1L5)
e rifweding $08] MARrALCWY waacing JCA) e i Shary sl | Winker (20) Sugar Smart (CA)
Hepcdrithon fGun e Hyration clder peaple: |-uahe Crampiane 15) Party Saion Drinking [AR] Ol el (O8]
E [ —r— [ et A Fisalthier e Taar - Stppng
Cirad headth (Ca] Jrsa uay e — samcking [1E]
PREE—— |stirwea 171 Py e m— Saccenl aaith (1}
i Clmar o Camcer () it i 3 Chr gt e oo (1)
] [ 08 (1o e thin
jacoc (M
T
Heart Heoalth
- . U ——— s R A — B i o e
p o wre, o Smokion Farital Haakth N il atvl bty e S saltl Boac Stapicher - meoe Sl Sty Wil Cna Tou Chargs for Lt « N Ermeking Dy
- + Menopases
wting
W Heart Healtin
s0p 1 amalth ecompnsing Sl Pyl Activity - i Stoprober bvent wtay wal this winter stay weall this wimter Drysanuary Eremt Change for Ufe hmalthy Stroka
S r ol iz acthaty and heakiy -Fop Up AN Lo - +BOC o M et + Dy Jaruscy + FLEFremetion Eating & W Smoking Duy
wating
PH Web Page Development - New Wehb Pages: Drugs [(AR) / Working Age Adults (LS) / Health Checlks (L5) / Health in all policies {LD] / Health Protection (EG)
T PH Wb Dewsnpmem
- Web Parbrmance - Riw Coiirs
Toboen Contesl infentfeadng Infartfesding Infurrtfoeding Irfan= emding: Tobacin Contral Infartfending
m_h"”u:';“' - BwrtaL e wmaning = g Fekacca Comtral -|::-|::th - Lozal infant Fesding - Mo Smoking Sarvoes | - StarsdLis wearing o e
(] Scheme |CA] gy [ il Scharna [CA] g Sesppert fEA) (] e joa)
Orm Bou Change & Life - Fhysicsl pee Onm You G You LU Crampgm & Lt Beoe NS
~ Bk Walking Bcmbity - Health Check Tocle® - Hopisbar B T ~ Straks (At LAST)
ﬁ ] Ona You e Yeu ‘O Yors e You Cm Tou ChaTou
2 = hstritiona jCa) - Binod Prars |LE) - Briak Wdking [Lt) ~ Haalth Chack Toslki (L) - EEoptobe (18] - Haaith Harrrs [L5] ~ W Wy, Rearw Yiru (B
Fublic: HearHr
] == MHE BODC MHZS
England | strote fAct pAST] 12y R e s ey N =N et ~Strake (AP ASE] L5
3 Shade gnifies that
Sart & L - Charyge 4 Life - Phyiosl Charge 4 Ufs - Physiesl - e e Chang 4 Life EONTS
3 PHE camspaigs is 1o bel - A o A g 4 L 1N Jenard L oA A - Aamasireg 4]

26




_ Agenda Item 7
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Localities Update

Board Lead: Barbara Nicholls

Report Author and contact details: Karen Starkey / John Green
Karen.starkey@havering.gov.uk
John.green@havering.gov.uk

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

<] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X] Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X] Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

The paper presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board provides an update on how
the focus on developing “Localities” collectively contributes to the aspirations set out
in the Kings Fund report presented earlier, in respect of pillar 3.

Localities development is underpinned by strong partnership working with NHS
partners with a focus on building resilience and improving health and wellbeing.

The paper highlights the wider transformation programme of the council that will,
together with Localities development contribute to role that places and communities
play in health (including mental health), including the impact of social relationships
and community.

Page 55


mailto:Karen.starkey@havering.gov.uk
mailto:John.green@havering.gov.uk

&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the attached paper, and to seek
clarification on the localities/transformation programme.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

As attached

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None

Page 56



Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Localities Update
Health & Wellbeing Board
Jan 2019

www.havering.gov.uk



Points to cover e

* The background
* Localities model
* What we are achieving together

Our next steps within the wider
transformation context

9G abed
(]

e Questions?

www.havering.gov.uk



This presentation.... w¢ Havering

KT L NDO

This presentation provides an update on how our
focus on developing ‘Localities’ we are
collectively contributing to the aspirations set out
in the King’s Fund report in respect of pillar 3:

65 abed

Pillar 3: The places and communities we live in
There is increasing recognition of the key role that
places and communities play in health (including
mental health), including the impact of social
relationships and community.

www.havering.gov.uk



The Background v Havering

e Health and Care Devolution

* anew locality model in that it will focus on
prevention; build social capital; provide
holistic wrap around care and support for
individuals and create a broader coherent
range of services, networks and pathways in
defined areas of the borough

09 abed

BHR Strategic Outline Case for an Accountable
Care Organisation (ACO) Nov 2016

www.havering.gov.uk



The Localities Model 4¢ Havering

www.havering.gov.uk



What we are achieving together <Havering

Co-location
> To move from4to 3

1;/ 4 Locality Teams for Localities (N, C & S)

& PD/Frailty

¥ Community Mental
Health Teams

v’ Learning Disability
Team

v Hospital Discharge

www.havering.gov.uk



What we are achieving together

Prevent, Reduce, Delay

Reablement

Voluntary Sector

Supported Living

Extra Care Housing

Shared lives

Drug and Alcohol services

Managed interface
between hospital and
community

v Sexual health mobilisation

AN CR L AN

\

» Re-commissioned reablement

» Voluntary sector opportunities
for integrated commissioning

» Closer working with Housing —

developing local supported

www.havering.gov.uk



Wider Transformation — Localities ##Havering

The Place Based Care Networks - the opportunity to
transform the way people experience their care and
support centered around GP networks

The Better Living model — strengths—based practice

79 abed

Local Area Coordination takes the strengths-based
approach into the community to build community
resilience.

Children’s Universal Plus - joined up approach to
Early Help in order to create a cohesive service for
families

www.havering.gov.uk



Wider Council Transformation v Havering

* Supported and affordable housing options
 Built environment

e Community Hubs

* Homelessness solutions

* One Public Estate

G9 abed

Integrating our Commissioning - focus on bringing
the design and investment together to better
support communities to be resilient and self-
managing as far as possible and making best use of
collective resources.

www.havering.gov.uk



Haverin

LONDON BOROUGH

Questions?

www.havering.gov.uk



_ Agenda Item 8
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Transformation of services

Board Lead: Steve Rubery, Director of Commissioning &
Performance, BHR CCGs

Report Author and contact details: Sharon Morrow, Director of Transformation and
Delivery - Unplanned Care and Mental Health,
BHR CCGs

sharon.morrow2@nhs.net

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

[] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

[] Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
X  to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

0 =0

Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

This presentation provides a summary of how health and social care partners across
BHR plan to accelerate improved health and wellbeing outcomes for the people of
Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Redbridge and deliver sustainable provision
of high quality health and wellbeing services.

Page 67


mailto:sharon.morrow2@nhs.net

&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

Note the presentation.

No formal decisions are required arising from this presentation.

REPORT DETAIL

The presentation covers the BHR Integrated Care Partnership and its vision, the
local system recovery plan, key service transformation areas and the new, clinically-
led, transformation boards.

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None.

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None.

Page 68



\// BHR Integrated Care Partnership

/1\\" Better care, better lives, together

Development of an Integrated Health and
Care System

Ceri Jacob, BHR CCGs Managing Director

January 2019




Background

BHR Partners have been working together to address system wide issues for a number of
years, formally through the Integrated Care Coalition established in 2011, which has
evolved into the BHR Integrated Care Partnership; it is comprised of clinical, democratic
and officer leaders.

In December 2015 following a call for pilot bids by the NHS and London Councils, BHR was
selected as a Devolution pilot site to test the viability and benefits of Accountable Care for
the BHR system. The ambition articulated by BHR partners was to be at the forefront of
-piloting new ways of working across organisational boundaries to achieve a step change in
&health and social care outcomes in order to radically improve outcomes for local people
%nd seek to mitigate the growing financial challenges in the system.
o

The Strategic Outline Case (SOC) was prepared with the assistance of external expert
resources (including PWC, UCL Partners and Ipsos MORI), and included outputs from a
comprehensive survey of residents and health and care staff along with the community
and voluntary sector, analysis of current and future health and care demand, service gaps,
and an assessment of a range of pathway improvements required to bring BHR in line with
best practice alongside detailed financial analysis.

The SOC set out a roadmap for a BHR ICS; strengthening partnership governance
arrangements, developing strategic commissioning between Local Authorities and CCGs
through establishment of the Joint Commissioning Board, and working with Providers to
develop a BHR Provider Alliance to take forward a place based delivery model of care.



To accelerate improved health and
wellbeing outcomes for the people of
Barking & Dagenham, Havering and
Redbridge and deliver sustainable
provision of high quality health and
wellbeing services

2
O
A
=
o
O

Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Redbridge Integrated Care Partnership
Statement of purpose




Integrated Care Partnership vision

Delivered by a system with the following aims:

= Enable and empower people to live a healthy lifestyle, to access preventive care, to feel part
of their local community, to live independently for as long as possible, to manage their own
health and wellbeing, which creates an environment that encourages and facilitates healthy
and independent lifestyles.

= Where care is: organised around the patient’s needs, involves and empowers the patient, is
integrated between agencies, with a single point of access, is provided locally where
possible, meets best practice quality standards, and provides value for money.

5
= |8 which organisations: share data where appropriate, work collaboratively with other
a%encies and maximise effective use of scarce/specialist resources (e.g. economies of scale).

N

=  Where artificial barriers that impede the seamless delivery of care are removed, bringing
together not only health and social care, but a range of other services that are critical to
supporting our population to live healthy lives.

From a person’s point of view:

= The system will feel seamless and responsive to their needs. There will be clear information
and advice about how to access services to ensure that they receive the right support in the
right place, all of the time. Those working in health and wellbeing (including other critical
support services such as local authorities, community care, public health and the voluntary

sector) will be members of a ‘community of care’ driven by a shared vision.
Source: BHR Accountable Care Strategic Outline Case, November 2017



KEY ISSUES

(%]
i}
o
[%2)]
]
[%2)]
(%]
[t}
o
(o]
(o]
<
=
(a]
g
=
o
(@]
[
>
<
=
(o]
L
(%)
o
a.
o
o
[~

Our proposed way forward

BHR: system deficit of ~£25m in 14/15 growing to ~£75m by the end of 17/18 alongside the need to improve outcomes for local people and address

local workforce gaps

This is placing strain on the ability of the system to deliver its constitutional standards and has driven an insufficient focus on transformational change

meaning we have not achieved the improvement in overall patient outcomes we would have desired.

NHSE/I require BHR CCGs and BHRUT to deliver joint financial recovery but it is recognised that this cannot be achieved without partnership work with

NELFT and the BHR GP Federations.

Overall the system needs to be more efficient to eliminate both historic and in-year deficits

o
A%ivity will also need to move Out of Hospital and closer to home by 2020/21 to create a sustainable financial model for the system going forward;

thigicannot and must not be at the expense of delivering high quality care and our constitutional targets
w

In addition, the financial recovery of the NHS in BHR needs to take into account the overall direction of travel for the health and care system in BHR

toward and Integrated Care System (ICS)

To deliver financial recovery in the NHS in BHR whilst moving with the rest of the system toward an ICS requires us to transform services, reduce costs

and rethink how and where care is delivered.

To ensure a coordinated approach, it is proposed to establish an NHS Recovery Board (NRB) to provide a forum for the senior leaders (clinical and

managerial) to coordinate our response to both the system challenges and regulator assurance and monitoring.

We also propose to establish a number of clinically led Transformation Boards targeting the key population we serve to coordinate transformational
change across our system and through this work to identify and assure the delivery of QIPPs/CIPs that will drive down costs whilst improving both

quality and outcomes




BHR NHS System Recovery and our journey to an Integrated Care System

2018/19
Transition Year

New Contract Form for 18/19

Shift QIPP focus to
Transformation

Complete SLR process with
NELFT

Fianning for primary care at
scale

Joint Regulator Meetings and
assurance regime

Focus on System Control Total

Develop Integrated Care System
Pilot Model

Agree Governance
Arrangements

Prepare for Shadow Year

2019/20
Shadow Year

Continue shared NHS Financial
Recovery approach

Shadow Integrated Care System,
fully engaged with Local
Authorities

Joint shadow Control Total

Continued Joint assurance
regime and joint Regulator
Meetings

Focus on Transformation across
entire Health & Social Care
System with partners

Refine Integrated Care System
model

2020/21
Implementation

Integrated Care System

Single Control Total within NHS
system

Continued Joint Regulator
Meetings

Achieve NHS System Financial
Recovery and run rate balance

Implement Integrated Care
System across BHR




Journey towards an Integrated Care System

= Evidence suggests that the key to our financial and quality challenges is closer working with
local authority and other partners to commission and deliver more integrated care

= An ICS is not the same as an Integrated Care Organisation or Accountable Care Organisation
both of which would see partners merging into one single entity. An ICS will maintain the
sovereignty of each organisation in the BHR System but would see an increase in joint
working, sharing of decision making and the development of risk share approaches. It is likely
that the ICS will also merge certain services (such as possibly back office functions) where it
makes operational and economic sense to do so but the partner organisations will agree
thgse together.

Q

«Q

= I\&my of the steps required to bring partners back to a financially balanced position, also
bing us closer to establishing an Integrated Care System in BHR, for example, the
establishment of Joint Commissioning to look at opportunities across health and social care
will not only yield financial and quality benefits, but is also a key step in the development of
an ICS.

= Some of the key transformation areas, such as the development of Place Based Care, also
give the system and partners real focus to drive forward the development of partnership
working and a more Integrated Care System

= |tis expected that we will use 18/19 to set out our plans for an ICS and will shadow work as
an ICS in 19/20 before ‘going live’ in late 19/20 or early 20/21.



NHS Financial Recovery Governance in the context of the ICS development

See Later
Slides

The following slides show some worked examples of how the proposed governance structure is expected to operate.



Key Transformation areas

= The following Transformation boards for each of the agreed key transformation priorities for BHR
are in the process of being established:

Older People, frailty and end of life

Long Term Conditions

Children and young people

Mental Health

Planned Care

Cancer

Primary Care

Unplanned Care

Place Based Care

abed 6 06 06 0 0 0 0 ©

= The Transformation Boards are clinically and professionally led groups designed to set the direction
of travel for transformation for a specific cohort of patients. Each Transformation Board will have
suitable management, finance and business intelligence support

=  Transformation Boards will be able to initiate short term task and finish groups to tackle specific
areas of concern

=  Transformation Boards will also become responsible for the identification and oversight of workup
and delivery of QIPPs and QCIPs although this may take time to get going.

= The appendix to this briefing contains a DRAFT plan on a page as an illustration of what these
contain, including requirements from enablers



Transforming Health and Care in BHR

System BHR CCGs; High impact transformation areas targeted to address BHR Joint Commissioning
=145 key challenges using principles of integrated care vision Board; Developing cross
system strategic
commissioning to deliver
integrated care system vision

Health and Prevention Primary Planned Unplanned

wellbeing
. care care
challenges Moving care care

P e Develop primary Care in right place,
o pr(‘-!vem‘: care at scale first time, reducing Reducing
( deterioration, including workforce inappropriate inappropriate
includes wider and supporting activity, and demand, admissions
determinants of delivery of more improving effective and ensuring
health. Focussed on| integrated care decision making appropriate length of
Care and prevention of through GP Fed stay (reducing
development delayed discharges)

Vision

To accelerate improved health and
wellbeing outcomes for the people of
2 Barking & Dagenham, Havering and
O Redbridge and deliver sustainable
provision of high quality health and
wellbeing services

quality disease and ill
challenges health

Older people, frailty & end of life Frailty
I I

Fundinég,d Children & Young People
efficienéP I ¥ I |

challen |
Long term conditions
I | A

Corporate Objectives M ental hea Ith
9 3 |
cial recovery

. Medicines optimisation
bccountable care system

Delivery of our COQ N N |
ransformation Mate rnity

programmes for

i I - I

mergency, complex
and mental health

Cancer
ontinued I | S | B

mplementation of our

agreed Primary Care
ransformation Strategy . .
BHR Provider Alliance

l Development of Integrated Care System delivery model

Barking and Dagenhar, Havering and Redbeidge Inegraed Care Partership|
Suatamertof pusost

To be scoped

Diabetes & AF .
New delivery

model achieving
improved health
and wellbeing
outcomes for
local people

Key enablers

including:

=  Develop Joint
Commissioning
opportunities
Population Health
management
New digital platform
Robust workforce
plan
Robust comms and
engagement
Fit for purpose
estates

Barking Riverside; place based care model




_ Agenda Item 9
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Work of the Integrated Care Partnership

Board Lead: Andrew Blake-Herbert,
Chief Executive

Report Author and contact details: Barbara Nicholls

Director of Adult Social Care & Health

With thanks to:

Mark Tyson, Commissioning Director, Adults’
Care and Support, London Borough of Barking &
Dagenham

Mark Eaton, Director of Recovery, BHR CCGs
(NHS recovery plan, section 5)
Barbara.Nicholls@havering.gov.uk

t. 01708 433671

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

X] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

DX Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

DX Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

The transformation of the health and social care economy for Barking & Dagenham,
Havering and Redbridge is being managed through the BHR Integrated Care
Partnership (ICP). The ICP Board is chaired by Cllr Maureen Worby, Cabinet
Member for Social Care & Health Integration in London Borough of Barking &
Dagenham.

The ICPB held a special session on 31 October, in which members of the Board
reviewed the current position on governance, transformation priorities, and future
developments of the ICPB work plan. The discussion was positive, and reaffirmed
all parties’ commitment to the Partnership, whilst also pushing for a clearer emphasis
on tackling wider determinants of poor health and increasing the pace around
delivering demonstrable change. At the close of the workshop, the Chair issued a
challenge to provide three clear, publicly demonstrable outcomes that would result

Page 79


mailto:Barbara.Nicholls@havering.gov.uk

&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

from the collaborative work of the ICPB; this is currently being worked on by
partners.

This report summarises the position on governance, the current BHR NHS
transformation programme priorities, and the areas that are being considered by the
ICPB for the future development of the programme. It also includes an overview of
the NHS Financial Recovery Plan, which is being managed alongside the wider
ICPB programme.

The Integrated Care Partnership is a collaborative programme for delivering
sustainability in the health and care services of Barking & Dagenham, Havering and
Redbridge. It does not replace the decision-making arrangements of the constituent
partners at this point, and therefore it is important that the Health & Wellbeing Board
is able to review progress and influence the direction that the work is taking.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board are recommended to:

e Note the content of this report, where it details the governance and current
direction of travel of the Integrated Care Partnership, including the issues that
arose from its recent consideration of the programme so far;

e Note the proposals around locality boards and any considerations around how
this might be established;

e Provide any comment back to the Integrated Care Partnership Board on the
work that it is undertaking, and how the Health & Wellbeing Board can be more
meaningfully involved in future;

e Agree the proposal that a further report comes back which outlines the ways in
which the ICPB work programmes will support delivery of the new Health &
Wellbeing Strategy for Havering.

e Note the presentation on the NHS Financial Recovery Programme and discuss
the key areas of focus and any areas of concern raised by the proposed
approach; and

e Agree how the HWBB would like to receive the final version of the Recovery
Plan when it has been updated following Regulator feedback.

REPORT DETAIL

1. Background

1.1  This report updates on the work of the Integrated Care Partnership Board
(ICPB) and seeks Havering Health & Wellbeing Board comments, feedback
and endorsement of the ongoing work of the ICPB

1.2 At aworkshop attended by ICPB members on Wednesday 31 October, the
Board reaffirmed the BHR ICP vision, the importance of focussing on

Page 80



A
B

1.3

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

%¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

developing resilience and focussing on prevention, and confirmed partners
commitment to working together to deliver the joint vision

At the conclusion of the workshop, the Chair of the ICP Board issued a clear
challenge to senior leaders to develop a clear way forward for the Integrated
Care Partnership, craft a more coherent narrative about the benefits to be
delivered, and to identify three big tangible changes that will be delivered in
the year ahead. This work is underway for consideration at the January 2019
meeting of the ICP Board.

Governance of the Partnership

The vision and structure of the Partnership is outlined at Appendix 1, including

the reporting lines of the Joint Commissioning Board, Provider Alliance and

Health & Care Cabinet. These are the three main operating groups for the

Partnership, and their roles are:

e The Joint Commissioning Board takes a system overview of the
contracting and planning arrangements for health and care services, and
ensures that competing or duplicating contracts and incentives are
removed,;

e The Provider Alliance brings together the providers of services to plan and
deliver the new ways to deliver health and care services that will be
needed in an integrated care system;

e The Health & Care Cabinet is a professional and clinical collaborative that
shapes the priorities of the emerging integrated care system and ensures
that all developments are influenced by clinical and professional
experience and perspective.

The governance also includes the relationship with regulators, NHS England
and NHS Improvement in particular, acting together in a single oversight of
the health and care system. This is a significant step, and only achievable
because there is a clear structure for collaborating across BHR. This allows a
single conversation with the regulators about the financial pressures applying
across the system, rather than resting with any single agency. Whilst it is
more relevant at this point in an NHS context, it is helpful to NHS partners to
be able to operate in this way, and therefore assists the collaboration with
local authorities on responding to the priorities that are locally determined.

Transformation priorities

The Partnership brings together the long-term ambitions to transform services
with the immediate priorities for system recovery and savings requirements for
partners. It is intended that the response to immediate pressures is therefore
evaluated in the context of what delivers the long-term vision of an integrated
care system.

A set of transformation workstreams have been established. Four of these
are the primary focus of the Integrated Care Partnership Board itself, whilst

Page 81



A
B

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

%¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

others are being run by NHS partners under the principles and general overall
direction set by the ICPB. The four main priority areas are:

Older People and Frailty;

Mental Heath;

Children & Young People; and

Long-Term Conditions.

There is currently a significant amount of work being undertaken to ensure
that the plans that are being established are genuinely reflective of all
partners’ agency priorities wherever possible. A local authority lead and a
clinical health-sector lead is being identified for each transformation
workstream. Appendix 2 sets out the transformation programme structure.

A review of the locality governance is an important element of establishing
joint oversight between the ICPB and the Health & Wellbeing Board.

Integrated Care Partnership Board: agreement to the programme

Whilst the ICPB has agreed this programme in broad terms, and supported
the development of the governance which will allow a better mechanism for
collaboration, there are a number of areas that they have signalled for further
development. These are:

e A requirement to focus on developing resilience, prevention and self-care
in order to reduce demand for acute hospital services and long term health
and care arrangements;

e A substantial, system-wide, financial deficit, exacerbated by significant
population growth not currently reflected in increased funding allocations;

o Difficulties in separating the wood from the trees, in mobilising a complex
programme, ensuring joint ownership and in developing and
communicating a coherent and compelling narrative.

It also identified some opportunities:

e The opportunity to re-focus the narrative and to identify three key priorities
for the year ahead and to communicate these effectively to Cabinet
Members, senior leaders, partners, staff and residents;

e Work underway to refresh Health and Wellbeing Strategies and provide a
clear strategic and borough specific context for the Integrated Care
Programme.

Specific areas for development

4.3

Prevention and Resilience

It is recognised that a greater focus is required on building resilience and that
the existing approach of requiring that prevention activity featured in the work
programme of each transformation priority was insufficient. A stronger
approach across the Partnership’s activity, supported by the wider input of
local authorities together with their Public Health colleagues, and linked to the
three Health & Wellbeing Strategies is therefore required.

Page 82



A
B

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

%¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Localities and Health and Wellbeing Boards

At the workshop it was recognised that while localities feature heavily in the
ICP vision, there is currently insufficient visibility or focus on how this
approach is being delivered. Localities need to be more clearly visible in the
programme delivery. At the same time, fresh thinking is required about how
best to engage H&WB Boards in the ICP programme. An option that was
discussed, was that HWBBs could provide a mechanism for championing
localities, ensuring locally-drive change is delivered on the ground, and for
ensuring that ‘place’ is central to place-based care approaches.

Clarity and transparency

There was criticism at the workshop that while on the one hand small issues

gravitated upwards to the ICPB, it was not always clear where decisions are

being made or who is being held accountable. Consideration therefore needs
to be given to where decisions are best taken, the mechanism for holding
different bodies and organisations accountable, and for preventing duplication.

In general terms:

e The ICPB should be used for big decisions, after due consideration by the
appropriate governance of partners, focussing on strategy, managing sub
regional and acute contracts;

e The JCB should act as a Programme Board, holding Transformation
Streams to account and ensuring that these are jointly owned, adequately
resourced and accountable for delivery;

e The Health and Care Cabinet is responsible for providing clinical
assurance, direction and oversight;

e Transformation Boards should operate consistently and be accountable to
the JCB.

This also related to the discussion about the meaningful involvement of Health
& Wellbeing Boards.

Communication and Engagement

The Partnership needs to do much better: co-design needs to feature in each
transformation stream, better ways of working with the community sector are
required. As well as clinical leadership, localities require citizen involvement
and local leadership. A substantial programme of communication is required
to set out the purpose and successes of the Integrated Care Programme.

Joint Transformation Fund

This has been identified as a priority in order to give clear resources that help
the collaborative work to have impact; it was agreed that this should be
progressed further.

System-wide Health and Care Budget

Work is underway as part of the submission to NHSE of a Financial Plan in
December 2018 to create a single system-wide budget position. However,
given timescales this is currently a more NHS-focused activity, and will need
to be further developed to include a meaningful understanding of the local

Page 83



A
B

4.9

%¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

authority contribution to a system budget. As well as setting out a route
towards equilibrium, consideration should also be given to how to prioritise
investment in prevention, localities and resilience and how to operationalise a
capitated approach to budgeting, where appropriate.

Other issues that should be in scope

There was some discussion about the omission of issues around disability,
including learning disability, in the scope of the programme (for example, the
reporting lines of the Transforming Care Programme Board) and that, since
this was a major concern for local authorities, it should have greater
prominence. This was also the case for some of the routine joint planning
forums such as A&E Delivery Board.

Next steps for the ICPB

4.10

411

412

4.13

5.1

5.2

The above issues have all been considered by the Joint Commissioning
Board, with various ways forward being proposed.

Partners are considering the establishment of a joint programme office for
2019/20 which will ensure that there is the resource in place to set the pace
that is desired by all partners. Mark Eaton, Director of Recovery for BHR
CCGs has established resources to support the transformation programmes,
and partners need to consider their contributions to form a jointly owned
programme office.

Matthew Cole, Director of Public Health for Barking & Dagenham, has
proposed a framework of measures around prevention which will be
considered by the Joint Commissioning Board on 28 January 2019, and which
sets outcome indicators under four domains: the wider determinants of health;
our health behaviour and lifestyles; the places and communities in which we
live; and an integrated care system. This is intended to help to reframe the
discussion on the transformation priorities.

All organisations’ communications leads are engaged in a network, led by
Rowan Taylor, Head of Communications for BHR CCGs, and are beginning to
consider the staff and public communication priorities to support delivery of
the transformation workstreams.

NHS Financial Recovery Programme

The presentation attached at Appendix 3 is provided to give the HWBB an
update on the progress of the Financial Recovery Plan for the BHR System
that is being jointly submitted by the CCGs, BHR University Trust (BHRUT)
and NELFT (North East London Foundation Trust) to bring the NHS
Partners/System back to financial balance by March 2021.

The document was submitted to regulators (NHS England for the CCGs and
NHS Improvement for BHRUT and NELFT) in December 2018 and will be
approved with any revisions by the partner boards in January 2019 during

Page 84



A
B

5.3
6.1
6.2
6.3

6.4

%¢ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

which process the document will be made fully available to the public,
partners and wider stakeholders.

This is an ambitious plan that relies on transforming services and improving
outcomes for patients as the core driver for financial recovery across multiple
organisations and which will have both financial benefits to and will need
support from Social Care and Public Health colleagues.

Next steps and issues for the Health & Wellbeing Board to consider

The Health & Wellbeing Board will wish to note the governance and
transformation plans for the Integrated Care Partnership.

The Board may wish to consider the plan for the establishment of the Locality
4 Board for Barking Riverside, and how the other locality boards may be
established in order to strengthen the role of the Health & Wellbeing Board is
overseeing delivery of ICPB programmes in Barking & Dagenham.

It may also want to decide on what further routine reporting the Health &
Wellbeing Board would want in order to be assured that they have a routine
input and oversight of the delivery of the ICPB agenda in this borough, and
that it delivers the Health & Wellbeing Strategy.

Finally, the Board will wish to be assured that the work of the ICPB is
supporting delivery of its Health & Wellbeing Strategy. Now that there is an
emerging stronger transformation plan for the ICPB, and the HWBS has been
agreed in final form, the HWBB may want to request a further report in due
course setting out the ways in which the ICP programme delivers the Health &
Wellbeing Strategy.

List of Appendices:
Appendix 1: Vision and Structure of the Integrated Care Partnership

Appendix 2: Structure of the Transformation Programme for the BHR ICP
Appendix 3: NHS System Recovery Plan presentation

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.

Any significant decisions arising from the ICPB will be subject to normal governance
processes within the relevant organisation.

Page 85



m¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Legal implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.
Human Resources implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.
Equalities implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Page 86



Governance

A 4

ITra nsformationl

Boards

N

Short Term Structure

J




This page is intentionally left blank



The broad pacing of the Programme, 2018/19 — 2020/21

Our partnership maturity and developing accountability

20 18/ 19
Transition Year

New Contract Form for 18/19

Shift QIPP focus to
Transformation

Complete SLR process with
NELFT

Planning for primary care at
«tale

)Gint Regulator Meetings and
assurance regime

Develop 3 year system recovery
plan

Focus on System Control Total

Develop Integrated Care System
Pilot Model

Agree Governance
Arrangements

Prepare for Shadow Year

2019/20
Shadow Year

Continue shared NHS Financial
Recovery approach

Shadow Integrated Care System,
fully engaged with Local
Authorities

Joint shadow Control Total

Continued Joint assurance
regime and joint Regulator
Meetings

Focus on Transformation across
entire Health & Social Care
System with partners

Refine Integrated Care System
model

2020/21
Implementation

Integrated Care System

Single Control Total within NHS
system

Continued Joint Regulator
Meetings

Achieve NHS System Financial
Recovery and run rate balance

Implement Integrated Care
System across BHR




The Transformation Programme

System

High impact transformation areas targeted to address key

challenges challenges using principles of integrated care vision

Healthand
wellbeing
challenges

Primary Planned
care care

Prevention Unplanned

. care
Moving care
upstream to

prevent
deterioration,
includes wider
determinants of
health. Focussedon
prevention of
disease and ill
health

Develop primary
care at scale

Care in right place,
first time, reducing
inappropriate
activity, and
improving effective
decision making

Reducing
inappropriate

including workforce
and supporting
delivery of more
integrated care
through GP Fed
development

demand, admissions
and ensuring

appropriate length of
stay (reducing

delayed discharges)

Older people, frailty & end of life

I | | B
Children & Young People

I | | B
Long term conditions

I | | B
Mental health

I | | B
Medicines optimisation

I | | B
Maternity

I | | B

Cancer
I D |

Care anc
quality Q
challeng%

Fundingand
efficiency
challenges

BHR Joint Commissioning
Board; Developing cross

system strategic

commissioning to deliver

integrated care system vision

Frailty

To be scoped

Diabetes & AF

i BHR Provider Alliance

Key enablers

including:
Develop Joint
Commissioning
opportunities
Population Health
management
New digital platform
Robust workforce
plan
Robust comms and
engagement
Fit for purpose
estates

Development of Integrated Care System delivery model

Barking Riverside; place based care model

Vision

To accelerate improved health and
wellbeing outcomes for the people of
4 Barking & Dagenham, Havering and
Redbridge and deliver sustainable
provision of high quality health and
wellbeing services

3

Saking ard Dagentae, Havereg md Redbridg stegaled Care Pteensip
Statement of purpose

ICP VISIO

New delivery
model achieving
improved health

and wellbeing

outcomes for
local people




Plans taking shape for the major transformation workstreams

Of principal interest to the ICPB:

v’ Older People, Frailty and End of Life
* Frailty Project

v’ Children & Young People
* Project to be confirmed

v' Mental Health

v' Long-Term Conditions
 Atrial fibrillation

0 * Diabetes
(@]
D

®© Plus place-based care project at
Barking Riverside

Other major NHS recovery
workstreams:

v' Medicines Optimisation
v' Maternity

v’ Cancer

Enabling
workstreams:

v’ Primary Care
v Unplanned Care
v’ Planned Care
v’ Prevention



Plans taking shape for the major transformation workstreams

o 2018/19 High level objeq ¥, (-
S i i et §=1 D B L v st ettt et i Fﬂm
2 oo e ek tgtet e s e ol L 3 Totiere hecowClaas w...:, 2 70 mprov ccst o, e sy o, martal o WM LIC Strategy deveioped
3 e bapolde el et g b et LS g il 3Tt ot e st - g *Demarstobie pgres
N s s '@4 o~ . . g Teus * It ot
CRO: Dr Rami Hara utamens ol 1765

1 MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLSEING | 2 PRIMARY CARE ction
Dotk ki ) 2 Medical Management of 3 S‘w».:‘:‘ !D‘mt)lvl Pa:hm:‘ Self Management & Soclal
(L. thene whts e co b

= LTC Prescrlbing of Key LTCs
v,
sugrata Hesth ovtiomes into the 100 Suppart the delivary of » wicide trategy mprove sccens 10 (AT 4nd recovery rates Prestions 10 temmnance deltrary of LTC US
s Chaliengs workureem - foliomwing FRPS sppeoel
COmmiresn & new service for Indwidual
Etabish bust Trameforrmation Bosrd. oot
e -
Commintion &1 integrstod nirsing homa Oeveiosmert ol new worklorse roe1 10 Commisnion s4dions! capacityin
—— ey || p—p—| | JE————
sommunity savices robu evizsres monr
anté2stien of outcomas bared cnanct I
""""“”"“"'l""‘""" roquired ta ccmmiveion new madel of cars Agrow robust cost and actvity assumptions NEL Chid Samum Abuse Hib.
| b 5 sppregriote | ST sgn ftve procesd Pacd roa erabin ) Thvough the L1 |
<2 i tha § o e o s
eation reviews Capanmion of salme vervies numbar ol potents undesgsig
e
nplamant the Trusted Ausessas in cohort Evaluation of model of carm sl patartiel QRS and LS |
o sare homes aerom BHR ol ol ot scren each SHR brongh fon wah revead O

asuring success:
= ) ucen . deonifcation 1 mucagemar of
Measuring success: oved
Measuring succass: b i Y hypertensio

Futura Rerations of the LTE LS 1o oct s am
anabler for the 1TG streiagy

| |

Ftierss idonifad s having AY.

i]i] 4] .|

{

Measuring sUCCeis: *Cloar d i .
Patients have an excellent experience o i jded in Bparoach 1o " ok . -
of care snd apport u'mm”::::dmd upstres ‘partmers of what an integrated 0-19 -rw«b'l-;"uz:‘l i:"_ « New contract in clace for dementis| | atriokiodikal Wi ey e
« Nursing hame stalfare supported € {add missions or this cenort serviee looks like = 35% 2019/20 cor J support ) percholescerolemia ond Weresse e
.« u Reolgroms wimpeoves | w Srvico user and cliician sign off -ummmmw:u. outsite of . 4 o wih st mecenionto s | Riiedmebarctafides
& uset and st i Continue to gec
« Reduction in unalanned hospita! postpres = Good service user and s secondarycare “Process in place for stresmiining 0% Rt ol i B3
dmiicns ::,f'l':".:':(: = | :ﬁp:::u\dmsud activity scores for ENWB satisfact pinary e relens im0 NEUT * Ovmatie e i e s
e ' i « i n dont o o E e commanlty liF
» fleduction in ambulance ceaveyances » Positive PREMS/PROMS — assumptions worked up Min from HWEB, Q&5 K }.::::‘ ah A

g e e romoving CAMHS Fsk re§

« Boards) sign off on vision i conpdrian. o |

e allemingpse o hs Trastorms
Agends

In BBy
Supportig devtopmant ol th 30

26 abed

v" Plans in development v’ Joint Commissioning Board,
v’ Transformation Boards Provider Alliance and the
meeting, shaping membership  Health & Care Cabinet all
and starting their work considering wider system
conditions that enable these
transformations to have pace
and impact




NHS|

Barking and Dagenham,
Havering and Redbridge

Clinical Commissioning Groups

NHS Financial Recovery Plan 2018-2021

Update for Health & Wellbeing Boards (HWBB)

€6 abed




Statement of Intent Barkingandoagﬂlﬁ?

Havering and Redbridge
Clinical Commissioning Groups

The FRP sets out a challenging transformational change programme that
focuses on improving quality and outcomes for the patients we serve whilst
concurrently returning the system to financial balance thus allowing the NHS
Partners within BHR to continue to meet the current and future needs of our
population and also to facilitate the move toward a true Integrated Care System
agjoss Health & Care.

V@e do not under-estimate the scale of the cultural, clinical and managerial
cRallenge that the plans laid out in this document will bring to the NHS Partners
in BHR and the need throughout this process to bring our public, partners (in
the widest possible sense) and our respective teams with us on the
transformational journey we are committing to.

We will be relentless in ensuring that as we move toward Financial Recovery for
the BHR System that quality, safety, access and delivery of our constitutional
standards are at the heart and centre of our system recovery and at no point
will they be compromised.

g~ "



NHS Financial Recovery Plan Key Timeline —

Havering and Redbridge

Clinical Commissioning Groups

Barking, Havering and Redbridge !ZHB N FT m m

University Hospitals Barking and Dagenham,
NHS Trust NHS Foundation Trust Haverlng and Redbrldge

Clinical Commissioning Groups

16th October 18 — NHS Regulators asked partners to pull together existing plans into a
coordinated single plan for the BHR System and since then we have:

G6 obed

Shared Existing Analysis & Plans between Partners
Identified New Shared Opportunities
Accelerated Clinical Engagement Activities
Pulled Together a Coordinated Plan
Sought Approvals by NHS Boards

17th December 18 — Presentation to Regulators
December — Revision of FRP Based on Regulator Feedback

January — Boards Review Final Version via Public Meetings

A — g



FRP Development Process

JSNA, Public
Health Data &
HWB Strategies

S
/ :

96 abed

NHS Data Sets,
RightCare and
GIRFT Programme

NHS

Barking and Dagenham,
Havering and Redbridge
Clinical Commissioning Groups

Existing Plans,
Clinical & Other
Feedback

Initial BHR NHS

Financial Recovery Plan

(December 2018)

Winder Public &
Clinical
Engagement

Regulator &
Partner Feedback
& Review

=

1

\ 4

Testing of
Planning
Assumptions

Further Iterations of the

BHR NHS FRP

(On-Going to March 2021)




BHR NHS Financial Position Overview Barkingandoagﬁlﬂj,

Havering and Redbridge

Clinical Commissioning Groups

BHR System Deficit

20.00
10.00
0.00
-10.00
-20.00
-30.00
-40.00

-50.00

L6 96.eg(is Title

-60.00

-70.00

-80.00
BHR CCGs (£m) BHRUT (£m) NELFT (£m) SYSTEM DEFICIT (£m)
2014/15 13.07 -37.95 -1.80 -26.68
2017/18 -21.10 -60.90 11.00 -71.00

2018/19 0.00 -60.00 3.50 -56.50

The projected deficit for 18/19 takes into account the projected work being undertaken by BHRUT and
also assumes that the BHR CCGs can fully mitigate the in-year pressures arising from elsewhere in the

North East London System.




NHS

Understanding the Current Deficit Batking snd Daganifam,

Havering and Redbridge
Clinical Commissioning Groups

Area

Narrative

Demographics

Partial contributor but does not explain
variance to North Central & East London
(NCEL) peers

Historic Under-

Has been a historic contributor (and remains

2 Funding so to some degree for Redbridge)
% Primary Care | Capacity and infrastructure issues have
Capacity contributed to the deficit position

Prevalence Gaps

Need to close prevalence gaps is a
contributor

Community
Activity

Spend and activity appear consistent with
NCEL Peers and this needs further
Investigation.

Secondary Care
Spend

Excess spend is a resulting factor from the

>

contributory factors above



: . : .. INHS
Closing the Financial Deficit watking e Dagenka,

Havering and Redbridge

Clinical Commissioning Groups

Focusing on all areas of spend from running costs to
estates to reduce expenditure without impacting
patient care, quality, safety or access.

System Wide Transformational Programmes
(see next slide)




NHS

System Level Programmes ek sl Dageiha,
bl Ly o
Reduce Non-Elective Admissions across the BHR System and
Older People iIncrease the number of patients who die in their preferred place of
Programme death.
This will be taken forward by the Older People Transformation Board
Dutpatient This aims to reduce Outpatient Activity to bring Care Closer to
% Activity Home and support the repatriation of work from Out of Area
é'?eduction Settlngs.
Programme This will be taken forward by the Planned Care Programme Board
Close the prevalence gaps further and proactively manage
Long _Term patients to convert current non-elective activity into elective
Conditions activity.
Programme
This will be taken forward by the LTC Transformation Board

These programmes will deliver benefits to patients in terms of

Improved outcomes and more care closer to home as well as financial
and operational benefits to the NHS and Local Authorities.



NHS!
N eXt St e p S Barking and Dagenham,

lllllllllllllllllllllllllll

1. Revise plan in light of Regulator Feedback

N

Approve via the Partner Boards

Work up of plans with more detail to test assumptions

1 6%

Communications and engagement programme

o1

Mobilise for delivery

6. Align programme to Local Authority Plans and quantify
benefits for inclusions in those plans




This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda Item 10
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Better Care Fund 2017-19

Board Lead: Barbara Nicholls,
Director, Adult Social Care and Health

Report Author and contact details: Caroline May, Head of Business
Management, Adult Social Care
Caroline.May@Havering.gov.uk
t. 01708 433671

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

X] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

<] Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X] Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

X

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an
update on the way in which the Better Care Fund (BCF) is being utilised during
2018/19 and how it is delivering against plan, and also to set out further details about
the proposed plans for the next year.

The BCF was established by Government to provide funds to local areas to support
the integration of health and social care. It aims to ensure a closer integration
between health and social care, putting person centred care and wellbeing at the
heart of the decision making process. The BCF is a vital part of both NHS planning
and local government planning. 2015/16 was the first year of the BCF nationally.

The BCF policy requires the pooling of budgets and a section 75 agreement about

how integration will be taken forward and the funding prioritised to support this. In
Havering, the indicative minimum pooled fund totals £24.403m in 2018/19.

Page 103


mailto:Caroline.May@Havering.gov.uk

v Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

e That Health and Wellbeing Board Members note the contents of this update
report.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

1.0 2018/19 Plan refresh

Our joint Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Redbridge 2018/19 BCF plan set out
schemes across four key areas:

(- Budgst / minimising service cuts / committed * Hospital Discharge Teams\
Savings + Home First

+ Intermediate Care

+ Localities

+ Discharge support services
= End of Life Care

~
+ Assistive technologies

+ Maintaining Independence

+ Mental Health

+ Supported Living

+ Residential and Mursing Care
—
Vs

+ Market Position Statement

+ Provider Rates

+ Market Planning & Capacity

+ Supporting the Yoluntary Sector

+ Waorldorce Development

+ Direct Payments / Personal Assistants / ISF J

+ Equipment & Adaptations

+ Disabled Facilities Grant

+ Community Front Door

+ Carers

+ Dementia

+ Information & Advice

+ Social Prescribing

+ Low level prevention & intervention services

/

The funding streams included in the budget are the minimum CCG contribution (as
defined by NHS England), the Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF), the Disabled
Facilities Grant (DFG) and for Havering the additional Local Authority contribution
towards the reablement contract.

The 2018/19 plan was year two of the joint plan initiated from 2017/18. As such the
schemes largely rolled forward with the exception being with regard to an increase to
the reablement contract, funded by iBCF. This was an increase of £238,346.

1.1 Assurance Process

Page 104



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

As part of the 2018/19 assurance process completion of a template was required to
illustrate this change and give explanation in order for the second year of the plan to
continue to be granted assurance status. The template was duly submitted in August
2018. Follow up questions were received regarding HWB Chair briefings and wider
HWB discussion, the impact on the Havering High Impact Change Model (HICM),
and regarding any link to Delayed Transfer of Care performance. These were
responded to, to the satisfaction of the BCF Assurance Regional Team

2.0 Section 75

The Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Care Services, in consultation with the
Leader of the Council and the Director for Adult Social Care, have been asked to
enter into a Section 75 Agreement for the purposes of operating the shared Better
Care Fund programme across Havering, Barking & Dagenham and Redbridge. This
decision was agreed and logged in July 2018.

The partners have been working on the joint agreement since the summer. This has
taken longer to complete than expected, largely due to the need for the respective
legal teams to review the various iterations of the agreement and then for feedback
to be relayed and discussed collaboratively. The section 75 is expected to be signed
and sealed by all parties imminently.

3.0 Governance

Governance of the joint section 75 was discussed and a shadow Joint Executive
Management Committee met during July 2018. At this meeting it was recognised
that the membership was very much the same membership of that of the Joint
Commissioning Board (JCB) and there was therefore, an opportunity to reduce the
number of points of governance and strengthen the JCB role by using that forum to
govern the BCF, with activity committed through Better Care Funds across BHR. For
each area HWBs remain the principal and overarching point of governance for Better
Care Fund arrangements.

Bringing BCF oversight together in one officer led governance Board, enhances our
ability to identify and drive activity of benefit across BHR, with less focus upon BAU
and more upon innovation and change.

This approach was taken to JCB on 30 July and agreed. It will be supported by a
finance and performance sub-group which will meet as and when required,
consisting of BCF lead officers in Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Redbridge.
We will align Terms of Reference to ensure that BCF activity and requirements were
reflected within the JCB Terms of Reference. Delivery groups will continue to exist
but will be refined to ensure maximum effectiveness and efficiency.

JCB will receive update reports periodically (at least quarterly).
Appendix 1 illustrates the revised governance framework.

4.0 Progress against 2018/19 Plan
Page 105



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

The commissioning partners have supported the steady evolution of the Better Care
Funds across BHR which have included the increasing alignment of plans,
recognition within our plan of the contributing components and spend in key areas
and in this current year, the provision of a single S.75 agreement and new
governance arrangements.

Our approach also draws upon the increasing development and reach of the Joint
Commissioning Board which provides a further strategic steer across the BHR area.
The JCB also offers opportunities to strengthen commissioning leverage within the
system “strengthening improved Health and Wellbeing outcomes for the people of
Barking and Dagenham, Havering and Redbridge ... [by supporting us to] ... deliver
sustainable provision of high quality health and wellbeing services” and specifically
to “ensure organisations work collaboratively...and maximise effective use of scarce
/ specific resources..” (BCF Joint plan 2017/18).

The challenge is one of recognising both the areas of commonality and opportunity,
with those which need to continue to reflect local differences and delivery which we
have sought to reflect in our current BCF plan. This plan in itself, describes a level of
ambition through which not just closer and more integrated working might be
achieved but also where the commissioning partners can take iterative steps as and
when they determine to deepen collaboration and integration.

Both market development and improved management of demand are key in ensuring
sustainability and in future planning, reflecting the focus provided with the IBCF
(Adult Social Care Grant) and in seeking to improve the management of demand for
services across our social care and health system and in maintaining performance
both for the system as a whole and for individual organisations.

Practically, we are also often commissioning within the same market or with service
providers who are themselves either working across Borough boundaries or seeking
improved consistency of commissioning terms and expectations.

Proposed further steps are being developed under our joint framework, are under
consideration by the JCB in terms of the specifics of our joint work plan.

4.1 Delayed transfers of care

One key issue for Havering in 2018/19 has been challenges in maintaining the same
or better delayed transfers of care performance of previous years. NHS England
prescribed challenging targets for the BHR system and are proving an operational
challenge for Havering, with a 14 % reduction in delayed days expected over the
2018/19 counting year. There is a six week time lag in getting hospital delay
submission data made available to local authorities, so the latest information
available is to the end of October 2018. November data is due to be published on
10" January 2019. The table below sets out latest performance information for the
BCF delayed transfer of care indicator.

Page 106



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Table 1 — Delayed transfers of care per 100,000 population — total number of days delayed for
each month.

800.00 +

700.00

600.00 +

500.00 | /\/\

400.00

Total number of delays per
100,000 population

714.70
685.20

300.00

551.4

——Target per 100,000
200.00

452.60
488.90
485.40

100.00 +

0.00

T T T T T T T
Q117-18 Q217-18 Q317-18 Q417-18 Q118-19 Q218-19 Q318-19 Q4 18-19

The primary cause of delayed transfers of care are with the NHS and are in the
acute sector. Examples of the kinds of delays that are being experienced include,
waiting for therapy assessments, waiting for transfer to specialist rehabilitation beds
(such as to a brain injury unit or neuro rehabilitation bed), and some significant family
choice delays where families take longer than expected to e.g. decide on the care
home they are happy for their relative to move to. Reporting to the A&E Delivery
Board, the ‘Outflow — Discharge Improvement Working Group’ continues to work on
improving flow through the hospital, including resolving key blockages to safe and
timely discharge.

Social care delays also spiked in quarter 2, but there is ongoing follow-up with some
out of borough hospitals as they have reported delays against Havering for patients
that social care was unaware were event in hospital. There were some delays
between July and October 2018, where the specialist support required could not be
sourced quickly. Because the targets are low, it only takes one or two patients per
month to be delayed beyond a few days to push performance off target.

HWB is asked to note that failure to meet the national targets for delayed transfers of
care (both NHS and social care) still carries a risk in respect of the Social Care Grant
monies.

5.0 DFG

The Disabled Facilities Grant is passported through the BCF to the ‘relevant housing
authority’. For Havering the value of the DFG in 2018/19 is £1.680m. Since 2008-09,
the scope of how DFG funding can be used was widened, enabling authorities to use
specific DFG funding for wider purposes. This discretionary use of the funding can
help improve delivery and reduce the bureaucracy involved in the DFG application
process, helping to speed up the process. For example, LAs could use an alternative
means test, increase the maximum grant amount, or offer a service which rapidly
deals with inaccessible housing and the need for quick discharge of people from
hospital. For Havering, a key deliverable for 2018/19 is a new ‘Private Housing
Health Assistance Policy’, which is anticipated to be ready for Executive Decision by
no later than the end of March 2019.

Page 107



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

The focus of the Private Housing Health Assistance Policy is one of prevention to
enable independent living, by supporting those whose independence may be at risk,
to access housing (including their current home) which meets their needs. The Policy
is steered by objectives within the Barking, Havering and Redbridge Better Care
Fund Plan 2017-19, the Care Act 2014 and the Housing Grants, Construction &
Regeneration Act 1996

This policy sets out how the Council will (for dwellings within the Borough of
Havering) exercise:

(i) the Council’s statutory duty for the provision of mandatory Disabled Facilities
Grants under the provisions of the Housing Grants, Construction &
Regeneration Act 1996;

(i)  the Council’s discretion to provide flexible assistance to help improve living
conditions and enable people to continue to live independently, or to enable a
family to continue to care for a loved one and avoid them having to move from
their family home into 24hr care, as determined by the Council in adopting
Article 3 of the Regulatory Reform Order (Housing Assistance) (England &
Wales) Order 2002.

The aims of the Private Housing Assistance Policy are:

(i) to provide advice, information and support on repair, maintenance, and
adaptations of properties across the Borough;

(i) to offer a health based framework of assistance to vulnerable groups &
households, including those with long term health conditions;

(i)  whilst it is recognised that it is the home owner’s responsibility to maintain
their own properties the Council will target limited resources to adults and
children that are most vulnerable or have a health condition and are not able
to maintain or adapt their own properties which could impact on their
independent living, and support to families to provide safe and affective care
to enable someone to remain at home.

(iv) private landlords will not be eligible for any grants under this policy. Landlords
have a duty to maintain their properties free from hazards and the Council will
exercise it's enforcement powers as appropriate to ensure that safe and
healthy standards are attained in the private rented sector. In certain
circumstances the tenant maybe eligible to apply for a grant under this policy,
this will be considered only on a case by case basis;

(v) to contribute to the Better Care Fund, principally to reduce delayed transfers
of care, minimise avoidable hospital admission, and facilitate early or timely
discharge from hospital by tackling housing related matters;

(vi) to facilitate an increase in the number of vulnerable households able to heat
their homes at reasonable cost;

(vii) to assist disabled people with adaptations to facilitate their movement in and
around their home thereby improving their quality of life;

(viii) in offering assistance the Council will promote relevant services offered by
other organisations;

Page 108



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

(ix) to treat individuals fairly as required by the Equality Act 2010 and ensure that
an individual’s rights under data protection and human rights legislation are
protected.

6.0 BCF Funding

For Havering, contributions to the fund for 2018/19 total £24,402,641 (of which
£23,462,641 is the required minimum fund size), broken down as follows:

Funding Source Amount
£m
CCG revenue allocations: 16.961
Disabled Facilities Grant: 1.680
Improved Better Care Fund 1.978
Additional government grant to 2.844
support social care
Total minimum contribution 23.463
LA additional contribution 0.940
Total Pooled Fund 24.403

Partners in Barking and Dagenham and Redbridge are contributing in total £24.237m
and £26.293m for each borough respectively.

At the outset of the agreement, all three boroughs retain their pooled funds for their
borough-aligned priorities. However, the agreement includes a fourth pool, where
clear decisions are taken by boroughs to jointly fund a project or service, the
decision can be made to identify resources from borough funds for the purpose. This
provides a vehicle for ‘cementing’ decisions on stronger integration.

To use the joint pool will require an explicit decision of the JCB, and will need to be
aligned to the priorities in the plan. Individual partners will be able to withdraw from
agreements made, but it should be acknowledged that to do so will require a specific
decision in the JCB, and funds would still remain as part of the Better Care Fund
Section 75 overall, as agreed as part of the overall plan with NHS England. Any
such decisions, in either direction, will be reported to the Health & Wellbeing Board
through routine monitoring of the BCF Plan and delivery.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.

Page 109



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Any significant decisions arising from the JCB and the fourth pooled fund will be
subject to normal governance processes within the relevant organisation.

Legal implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.
Human Resources implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.
Equalities implications and risks:

No direct implications arising from this report which is for information purposes only.

Each individual decision will be subject to an EIA.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Integration and Better Care Fund planning requirements for 2017-19
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/integration-better-care-
fund-planning-requirements.pdf

2017-19 Integration and Better Care Fund Policy Framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/60775
4/Integration and BCF policy framework 2017-19.pdf

Minimum allocations for the BCF from CCGs for 2017-19
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/better-care-fund-ccg-min-
allocations.xIsx

Page 110


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/integration-better-care-fund-planning-requirements.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/integration-better-care-fund-planning-requirements.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607754/Integration_and_BCF_policy_framework_2017-19.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607754/Integration_and_BCF_policy_framework_2017-19.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/better-care-fund-ccg-min-allocations.xlsx
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/07/better-care-fund-ccg-min-allocations.xlsx

Governance (including BCF)

\ 4

y

v

Care Cabinet

BHR Health & J

|

Joint
Commissioning
Board

J {Provider AIIianceJ

‘/

(" .
Finance &

Penfermance subgroup
(BCF)

\ J

- |

Area based locality

kboards & subgroups )

L/

T abed

N

\ 4

LA’s
Transformation
Programmes SR

BHR CCG led
Transformation
Boards

<

—

|
)

&

Short Term Structure

J




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

Health and Wellbeing Board 2018-19
Forward Plan

HWB Meeting 13 March 2019

Option 1: Health and Wellbeing

Strategy: outline proposal Barbara Nicholls

e Transformation programme

Option 2: Condition 2: Mental health * Autism Strategy: Progress Report

e Suicide prevention (LBH Public Health)
Children and adolescent mental health
e Dementia (Dementia Partnership Board)

Sexual health (LBH Public Health)

Reports e Safeguarding children Board and
Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report
e End of Life Care Annual Report (CCG)
e Local Account (LBH Adult Social Care)
BHR CCGs Community Urgent Care BHR CCGs Following community consultation “right care,

Consultation — the future urgent care right place, first time".

pathway for our area

V14 Paée 113



Health and Wellbeing Board 2018-19
Topics previously presented

Healthwatch Annual Report

Ann-Marie Dean

SEND Strategy

Tim Aldridge

Topic: Cancer

e Overview (Mark Ansell, Director of Public
Health)

e Health champion programme (Health
Champion Service)

e Cancer services (CCG)

e Living with cancer:

. Access to Work (Department for Work
and Pensions)

. Exercise (YMCA)

Topic: Prevention

® Prevention “A vision for population health,
Towards a healthier future”

e Health Improvement Report (LBH Public
Health)

e Localities

e Transformation of services (BHR CCGs)

e Work of Integrated Care Partnerships

Reports

Better Care Fund

Page 114




Health and Wellbeing Board 2019-20

Forward Plan

First meeting

Obesity strategy
; . To include an update on NHSE plans for

Health protection annual report Public Health improving uptake of shingles vaccination

Children’s services

Drug and alcohol harm reduction

strategy
This could be expanded to consider clinical
governance/quality of commissioned services.
This is such a big topic, it would be impossible
to cover all in a single meeting, so possibly

Clinical governance report commissioners and providers presenting what
are the priorities issues/concerns for local
services — and signposting to published
commissioning strategies/clinical governance
reports.

Preventing sight loss Public Health A report that follows on from report produced

by Healthwatch about the quality of care, post
diagnosis.

Forward plan to be developed further once dates / priorities identified

V14

Page 115




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET
	Action Log
	HWB Dashboard January 2019

	5 POPULATION HEALTH
	Population Health

	6 HEALTH IMPROVEMENT REPORT 2018
	2017-18 Health Improvement Annual Report

	7 LOCALITIES UPDATE
	Localities Presentation

	8 TRANSFORMATION OF SERVICES
	Update Health and Care Transformation

	9 WORK OF INTEGRATED CARE PARTNERSHIP
	ICPB update - Appx 1 Governance
	ICPB update - Appx 2 Programme
	ICPB update - Appx 3 NHS Financial Recovery Overview

	10 BETTER CARE FUND 2017-19
	Appendix 1 - Governance

	11 FORWARD PLAN

